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T wISA Hvaal fafiee
E)

Qu 3 anfifer WURUT JuT FFERA e

fafa 05 99 oz A HIGARHT faF TP Foarerd AAITH §3R A TSHF! MUAAR T4 fairr Teamet
3% I ATt TR FAT IETAHT (TTIEEHT BAR TeepT ATNT 7+ TS, T T THAAT I JUHT §aT HET
U R0%3 &% THT &9 (F) TF (i ATl HaHEaia Had ¥ F R TF0 SREAT AT ATaaad] ST
Td guteafdert AifT afds R TEE; |

T g fAfd ;. R05R A 99 30 I, FEAR (TEAIR 9% SATEE R0%%)

LI . fagrd wer, famey, #revaR, HrewTet
IHqT . faemer 99.00 ar
TARART [TITET :

(F) AT FEaTE
q. TF I RIGAT FHHAT @, B AT 9. R059/05% H =ATAE® ATHTH ATMHH IqIaT II FARA
fe e T |
3. A@REER Fiqdad qede! A.9.2059 /05 &I I f&axira favr (053 ATTE HATAR! aTd«Td,
ATHRT AT fedrer ¥ Qrer Aafael 79g yare faaror, ArhT Ay aiethie [edrd |arad aifded fa<ia
fararurT aeafeaa aqg=ee q9d) SARA T 9T T |
3. AT R05R/G3 H AN ATET A@IIIEE FMIh T ¥ (STl qTestae qHa ATHET T
(@) faoiw geamE
Q) 79 faxdirar Tearer wfasrar 9w STk S a7 foxira FRaTET U ATIRHAT A /MO (Merger) T9T
I (Acquisition) 9 FTF=AT FHHERI TFAT &6 T4, oA d=a q¥id ¥ I HATHA (Due
Diligence Audit) THe TATRT HAIAT YT HAThARAl (I T, [Tl qRATHE AT AATHT HI
TERAT S ATEeTF IORAT TR T FoaTad qrafqars Aieqdardd gare 9 |

@m fafaa

ATl FrATTeR! AT
FEHT giaa
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ATLTRUT THT FFIAT 3o ST

q.  TH T BISATE FHIAT [ATHESHT & Al aTitier ATARI FHT TASTHT AT {9 R053/0% /95 Td Tk faa
IPERYAT Al fhdTd a8 (Book Close) T8+ & | wurel fadras fafqwa awir fafadegdr R053/0% /99 Taaw=w
FRER 9% faxiig Feamer 997 w9 #;free fafgds, FHardr #reamsiane 9o afga aris 9%
STIRGAT AT [HATIHT HTAH FAUHT ARG TR FATHT FRT fa7 913+ S |

3. AN gidesd 9T AERT THH SARA g [qUIe® iaddl ol TaRdAl Helqddeedls Sudaed oY
SATATHT T3Te S | ATMe Gfqaae YT g7 Tl FLATHl T FEATAT FHATST FISHATIST, STET HraTed
PHeT=iTes, qeac qoaT AT 9o ATER 99 Fnfuea fdiads, HHATE, HISHVSHT T¥d @l 1w
giqaaT I T FHES, |

3. AT AR AT AR (7 AT TARGAT HelHTEaee&d feayTel @rdl @ifaus! (D-Mat)/ & FHTIIS,
AT I Goel THTOT THHT ATIHT AT FATHETH FILT T T2 B | G497 4 faa faer qoi00 asiefa zat
FII7aX Geal @A G |

¥, FHTHT AT (a9 SRGA AETTHEeEd AThRAT Jiaiid (JT) (Heh 9 =TeAT T9T 9% gAvwal ¥ Hual
ITST Fa=iTT SRAThT GuTH HTATed, HHATET FISHTISTHT TRl BRA TdqT TRIEGHF T |

Y. HATaTede a7 fafeTe SRREwIH] AT HFEIATR! ARGl IAT [hATaHT AY&Thedb] ®IH] ATH AT TR AR
AT FATHT AT fad a1 9raRil ok 9 9 es | AR 9eld HUH SARATArdl aled d% STaRdHIe!
gfafafa (i) & Farar arr fag 99 g 27 |

% U HRT A SAThe®ad! ATg Al GI<h BIHT 9% J&T T AR e%dh! ShHT SARTAR! A1 [hdTaAT afee

A Jooi@ HUH! Afthel a7 FATFATETE ATH HeH [HIh TRUS T AT SEREGA a1 qagqeAdare Mach
gidiHfae AT FATHT AT fae arave |

o YR feg@dbert 9TIRYNT WE IURAT § QU AW o9 =TEHT 9 9% g A FEAl qrad Hhd
ToATAF FHIAH AAAATS (dqrgd a1 [ag Foiel Ih FHH] AT faq 9I99a | Il daedrd T foster
faeh e gfata (FeT) & aferany 99 @ 988 g1a |

o FARAH fauagEr Ay fafag Riw svd SAwd T TegE SEREAS 99 g 9T 91 69 oRme
TARAH! fTTT FFIAT Aferg AR qoaTad ATAfaEr e fdigd AT foq avig | a7 J9ars gawd
T AT B YEATER] TAHT FHTA T S |

Q. YR THAT FEIT I SABRIR! ATNT TH FEITHR! AT FrATAd, FHATET, FISHUSHAT HraTrd g0 =

THIE AET Ficbel G | AT ATIRO AT I foeqa e (O Fearel g1 Hared, FHATaIw!
AT IIEMHT q4T faxiid FEAThl a9dTse www.bestfinance.com.np T @ B |
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I FIEAeT B0t fafiegar u s arfiie amRuor qwmT
YoATareh qIATehT STEARTERT W Uldgs

AT FATYAT FEHTEEE,

AT hTEAT BT ffragar R At AraRer aTHT guterd gegu ATERHg SERAAT WETTATTe,
T g Afafasaeears aifcd @R 168, |

AT JUThT AT TATHT TEHT o T FrETaddre &g Gar Y& 6 Aetedl @ | ATeeuig Sl
HETSTE qIT TG MEIesdre Y EhTd, AN Me9TeTg ATcHATT Ta G2l AT Aigiael BRI AR
TS | AT, YTeh FETTAd AT AT qAfaradsIegedrd Y GednT T GEarde! AT gifde a=are Jra= 145 |

HARELUT PUIYA AEAWTEEE,

T AR TS FEATRT ATMTF a9 2059 /05 I faiid [qarues, agard, AThl-A edrd T 998 9are
fereruraiede! faxia giqasd gaha MR 9 T4 HAHA Whl FeRT ARG G | TH THHT GHHT Telees
IATE B4 @ T4 I<h [9aRves Jeies THe J&qd T =ewg |

AT a9 3059 /0GR by AAATIHT AT ATV & TAT | AT HALATITHT 3EHVETE TEoT Faw
TEHT AUATATT FTHT ATAHT MGUHT RITTATTHT HROT FMHIbATEED HAAAHT NRTAT TS Foiebl ANTHT FHHI
AT | ST AGATHT FHT A7 | AR ol aurd agq T | g% qar fa<dr gearessr HieRg &1 dadra
059 ATIEHT 3.5% GIAeTd TEHMT 053 ATUEHT ¥ &R GIAerd TFAT | RISAT HFIAewdh] AT Hieha &l
ALY T H I9 FATTII g7 [T | EA, BIGATE FFIAEEE! (Mg ol JITd 2059 ATIEHT & .58
i THAT 05 ATUTGAT Ieh ATATT g §9.04 Jiqerd I¥v |

Y aRfeafd sraara §57 @ | e afq FAifaaer sEwarere it | qardt e FHiaeedrs ERa 19
FMST dlETEHh SHBRT ATHHN RIS A6 |

q fama adr FOECERT fgEeE:

o T fai FeeEdrs TWhl i Gaeqdl, 0T THAAT [ ToAT Sy ATedr, il aagwed!
Aifeear, Tt asAfas e afears faum T erEer GEATE FRERAE a9 SRS

TETSEH T |
AYF a¥ 050 /059 T 3059 /05R UG HATTHT FEATH Hecd 0l [ qaAFI5e® ae1d quITH Tedhl
Enll
TG HET afe
faawo THS :
R0z’ Rozq (grfereras)

=[hT gSil &, EAHT 5,%0,% ¥ 5,1¥,599 ¥ 9%
e ¥, BOlHI 4,94 39 4,¥4R,53% 4.3%
el FHAT &, EolTHI ¥ 4%, Rk ¥ 038, A5 .53
kiRl &, BOlTHI %,5%5,3%% %,%0%,2%4% UK
fHfRar s (NPL) gfqerHT 9¥.%3 4.2\ 5.%%
IS AT AT giqeraHr 90.3¥ 43.89 (3.33)
Al & ST EIGNGEI CERNS 93,59 0.99
qIAAT FTATT EIGRGE 3T9R QR 3.R0
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ATYE HATA afg
IECE ECOES ©
305R 059 (Fferera®T)
FAT AT e/ Afsryg
. PIGEGEI 5.0% q00 45 93.4)
EEIERRIG)
JIATHRAT YT &1 ol EIGEIGE QR.&5 99.4% 9.9%
fag=1 =7 &1 PIGEIGE 9,90 1.99 .43

AR =HT Il ¥ 9% a9 gig AUR B | HIET AAMIHT FLATHT B [Hard Aferead] Tl JerHr
Y3 HIqerad gig 9% 2053 AT HATRIHT & Y 3¥d WY FS TWH B | |ife FafaAr g qar fa<irg
TEAEEd! (HaTrl gig a7 qR.& U9 el T | AT, ARATHT FeA Bl AToTeddl TPl TATTHAT .3
giqeTaer afg W& 053 AT HATRIAT &, ¥ 3T Y, FIE [H | A9 AT o T4 fadra qearewma
FATH FgaR 5. ¥ AT ILH B | THIET AATITHT FLATHT ATAATAR] ATHR 4% AT Fig HE IS
YT R06R | &, § IRT 59 HRAS [H G |

TR S qATA ATAT T Al TAATAT 3.33 TIArael TR 053 ATUTE HATAT 10.3% gfeqera#r
YR T | HEA-BUHT GATH! (ATRT Farel qhga ol AR I g TRl qhgehl Pl

AT FEATT WA TTHT & | A, AT ATITT AT AT bR (AL AR FAF @ UF AAH Q0
gfqeras=T A EH G |

ATUTE HATT 059 AT Y. .89 Glqerd &l MiSha &ell AT ATIE HATT 05 AT Je¥ 9¥.¥3 giaerd
TR B | Hie HUiEwEe qar e fdq TR TUATIH Holl STARTHT Hel Fhad I@Uae ATGH
SHACATITEHT TSIV FAl AT HARAT TRUHTe R ol age bl AHHN TRISH =g | AT,
FAT AT AT qoT R Sl AT AT AT R05R HAT 5R.6% Jqerd wHl 3 |

FRATST AT AT IR HT FAT T Aehebl AR FAR FIAW AET I Foll (MaTdehl ATThaH
AT 20 Giqera qAT TRAT AAATART ATH ATHT 3 IIALATATE TURETHT G Tl G | 069 T 2061
ATITE AATTAT AT o1 [T ATATT HHAM 93,59 Fqrd T 93,25 Fqerd @bl & | T, qaAar AT
R05q T 05 YTHIE WHITHT HHM 343 GAerd 7 3%.9% Hfderd @# 3 |

TSl IT SehalTe (AERTT Foia® ATIE HAT=T 053 AT FTATHERAT T &7 ol el HoIhl 3.5 Fqerd
TEHT G | AT AT AT A Sebepl (I ATAR FRITAT 4R GfeTeTed e T 6T AT Fea1 afe e
T FAT TR TUHT G | A, T a7 FT AT0G HATT 053 AT FHel Hoflehl 9,90 Ffeqere Eehl 3 |
AT FAT AT TATA AT TebebT A AR BRI ¥ 9T TATE TAAEHT T AT g § FaTe e
g |

3 wfEw qur smaaiey afifeafaare s oo a9 @y
TA-NE AR TR A
R05R HTE 33 T ¥ AT AUH -9 ATRATA AATAR] THE ATIF FRAFPFHAT T AT TREBT GBI
JTh T AR [T FEATEEH BTelehl Fqaaad a@UH G |

T2 [aTEF A =l ATl ATRIEd T AHIGHE ASTHldd  AAAaard a¥aihdie (qeard FHAR
STATTeT, AT HRIAR G Tl T AMIE G AT TIHT 3 |

ARFRA AT AMGF TTAT AP Ffgaw & giqeraer faear g a @ Tehr far | a7 faea dwer ot
Jidaadel IRl ATdF Figaars 2.9 TAATHT FIRb B, STTHAT S-S ATRAT T AGH! ASTAlTcTH
THTEATE THE FRUHT ETH AATZUH G | AT qGT F1F (IMF) of G Tareel afdss afgawar
HTHTH TETH F |
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wiEa ¥ efiv gwufa ssre fee
FIIE HETHNIYTS, e AATATHT BichUehl T &F Ui ATrR ARl HIRUT FHIIT ATHT B | AITAHT 0%
YLHITAT R 30R faaell Tes ATTHMT J03Y, FLFRAT 95,3 gfaerae gex ¥s,oqq 1 dfHa &7 T |

I, i erEwaTa a9 wfverd e qerd dar TR qeta SREREr 9 fRiEe STeE g 1 0%y
AAITIHT 30,43 T AT AP R0, FHITAR UIX 33,33 AT e qTH 3 |

TN -9 A=A Ui, FAGHTET T ATH ATGAT SIThT dAdiear ¥ el I@a Tqrerafdqer g
ATTeRT YiRadel 39Tl AT AT TeTST FoY T Yo IMawg, | Fedaed, FTITATS Ui Faard faear
T FAIT afas TR G |

ST aEEe WY TR SEES srERA

Sfepg & Afect e HAITATE (AREHT G | AU HATHl AT TRT S | 8TH AT T w0 Gfqera sTwar
Ffg TR THAT (AR T THl @ | el HUeed TaardHdl Thl AR, ATRTAT THl ATAT ATTE BRI
THT IGUHT G | FAEEY, FHoll [q Ta &THAT AUHT HUT Ii Fofl Al TRl FRIT 90 S | HIaqT
T el TeseadT aRaral RIeTied Afam Teahrel 9fd Har ol el T9 TITeTE ardr IHRee 3 |

Tt Saetiiea qun fa<fr aneran:

eI qTeh HETATaeEdrs (aurd JaT JaTd THHT ATaard qefshe! qraTeie qarias aifamaary afq
TH G | I GaAHT IR ATHINE IARENI A (Corporate Social Responsibility) AT el ATHINTE
FAFAEEHT I FEITS ANTEE (RATIS AT B, | FEATHT ATRT THHATE FEATSUHT ATHINAF FALMIA
HIThT THHATE FLITA FHTTHNT TTHAT JTART T AT ATAFTT TH G |

FLITl AP a9 059 /5 UT ATHINTE IJaRanacd qar o AIeRal =aiid JIHT & 354, 55%1%%
g9 TR 99 TAT FREHHB! AAAT TH G ||

A ATUF qUHT IqAfsd T WIET TIAATH THFGHT FSATAF AIHART SO
F) A AfdF q¥ (WY AATT R053) F SFECR HEEada GFaegd

faao ERQFS il i
05 0% (grferaram)

=T ol ®. AT 520 ¥3¥ 520, ¥3¥ -
BEERAIREC] T, BSHT %,939,94¢ 4,539,408 . %%
el AT X, geRHT ¥ 94,495 ¥ 99, 58% (1.3%)
Fol T FTaa gfqeraHr &5, 9 .29 (19.9%)
qTAAT AT gfqeTaaT ¥R.0% 2% R0
T aeRaT YT & el gicreTaHT LR 3.33|  0.0%
faa=1 a7 @l gaeTeadr V.03 L3 ¥R
FHoAT AR ST ARy

. EISEIE OR.43 SRR (R.R%)
FSAT ATATT
AT AT qURT FHIET FATTHT HGR HATT 053 AT ALATH F [eld ATeeadl aubl ATl 5.%%

wfaeraer gfg 9 063 HiET WEATRTHT &, & R 13 FS TEH T | T, JATHN H oAl Afereal
U AT 1.3 FqqA wle 053 HER HATH &, ¥ 3T ] HAS [H |
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FETHT FHol [(HET AT Aol auepl Tl 99.9% Taade g 053 HiET AHTRHT 6.9
TSI RN B | AT AT AT 6L Aehebl (HATH FTAR FTAH TCAT AfeTeha® JAT 0 greyere
q=aT &% T Wl G | T, qRAAT JITd 05 % HiGR AIATAHT ¥3.0% YA gl &, [ AUl AT
Sepepl TR AR =IAdH FAF e I AT 3 Jiqerad=ar oy A\ wH g |

AT I ShaTe ARTT FoTd® TATHRAT U & ol Afeeedl THBl JAATHT 0.0%, FreqeTael Jig
g /R HATT 053 AT e FATHN 9.3 TS TEF TUHT &, T AT 6L Sebebl (G ATARET
AT AT 9R Fiqeraser afg T @l g | FA, faqe a0 ol Giar J9T 053 AT EA BT
9,03 YTALT TEHT G | AT Foll I TUTA AT SFebepl (I ATATCHRT IATH AT & Ffqerasw=T afg
T TEE G |

FSAT AT e MR &S dara 053 AU HATIAT 53.0% JIqerd IEHAl R05R A&
FATTAT 93 U3 FTTTTAT ¥l G | AFA T [AIRIAT AW AT e HoAl HHAA I HEAG IAT Ao
g TS AT FATT TEA TR &1 | AT ATATHT ATTH NR1aee dearars Mina &1 sgaearad
THHT AT 9T AT T AT G, |

B! faxiid osTRepT AARATATS AR T ol AATA g T SIgHAATS J&H [T TR0 Fli
THIATS (AR=ARAT qT qRAdT T AR o Hoiiehl ST T8 AEAThT ool qATRT Jig T Tl
TN Teehl FERT Ui STAHRRT TRTSA =8+, |

) A gfafer (Information Technology) fawma:
AR FRIARHT AT AALAF (qaR0EE ARAATHT ATa@ T T FREAR TH AIAqH A4
g qur o geaEEd 99 d AN T ATTRT Banking Software-Pumori Plus JANT TI'F('Q?b:f g |
IEAIRATS I TR Tlﬁ'Q_cb:F Uptimized Pumori JAETHT Famﬁr»qa?r g | T8 GIEauTH] HIAHEATE
T BTl GoATATHT Tehl T MGl FATATews T3¢ T=arel (Network) AT #eg T Any
Branch Banking Services (ABBS), f9USTT (Remittance) 1S ey JAT YaTH TE ATREH B | G
FISATSIH], TALIAT @SS @I ¥ AATYY ETETe TE TH FaT G2 e ATSEH 3 |

QEE <, ¥EITT Mobile Banking, Connect IPS, QR Code, RTGS ¥aT, Online Account Opening 9T
FURE T AMIqHT fefiaet FREARH! AIAHATE Sfehg AT FaTH TRIEH B |

qquT by FTIEEATE Digital Automation TTRT FeTH FIATAT TAT ITTET FIATATEEATS (&Y BT
REd ATATERIAT FoaTad T 9T FTER Whl & | 9 HHAT =1 ATN4F qUAT Internet System
STETH T FEATHT A, Frafatd, TR, TSae TI% T9T AT T FFfeaq U, Hamamaer afears el
FHARE®H! Ted a1 I Upload T ATATF HaedT HATSHIFUH & | PEPs List Screening T,
fordT FeAteRAeRaTeTs qTeraTa fdl Heaterer! sawa fHere, SR fdr ol S He ¥ Sa=amae T,
PRSI TATRS T, FAl TATFA [THNTHT HH ATTHAA T T Online Exam F=ed TH HEAAX TS
TRATFTRT B | TR, EGT AT JOTA GFaed] TIaadR 9id ST TRATHUH 3 |

TR RG] HETTATAES, UTEh HElTHTEE® a9l =g ABRATAl Fbrd TIT A7 HETTHTIEE D]
SITHHTIHT ATNT FEATH &k TArdid qdT AT FLATHh dadrse www.bestfinance.com.np e JaT8
T HATZREHT AN TRISH =MEw |

M) HEATRT TS AT A7 FEITETM T/ MIAA (Upgradation and Merger) S¥aweT:
T TS AT THT T ARl faeirar FEATeRT AT AT AT SpATE AMFURT FATH FRT I
®.50 FIE T T FRER FaTad TREH B | M, q=7 §F q47 fadg dearers i T ar
HRIET MR TR AT ATNT ALAT el Goddl QRN B, | TT T3 HT, AT (= ATIGIGHT
HATLTRAT v oo/ faeiTa T MAUR a1 giitq MY g TARepT “T” avTehl fairy FRaTare TaRieiie

2Q 3 aiffed Ufddgal 20Ta/T -8-—
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¥

3 ey el faehr Sear TRt g7 ded fauet § 1 ¥, 9T A faewr S anfin sravad
TATIERT (b TRREHT & | AT b JAT faiTg FRATEI T /TMOTT (Merger) IBRAT SATTE &
AU ARGl HelHIdewdrs e /AT (Merger) 9PRaT I¥7dl ATAAF SRR TRTSTH]
Hialeeh STRlaRT AT g&ard Ter TR 3 |

AT "eeq faw (Human Resources Development):

LT AT HMaAATs AEcaqul ISiiepl THT fqUep! @ | F¥AThl ATTAATE q&d R T AT G
e TP W §5 | TF FRTTS HATR e GLATHAT FART T TEHT FHARIEERT HTT &TTAT JqT
T faepreet AT Twg FwAT faari Rear sarsr aifaadr Teantt RS TS 3 |

THHT ATTh HHEARIEED ARl oo e LI ThR1eR a97 TR 9§g & TR araraiore
fARTOT T FHEIEEATS TG T qod ST 947§ e THT ATAR Jig T Ao T FHANEEATS
fague! FTFHamT ATaRS! F1T TFEAR FATSET T ATTTFHAT ATAR IGaT 9 Al Wl B |

IRRE ATed THT FUTAT FHATHT &7aT ¥ &7ar faswraer afn afafew arfaw qor Ifearesar a9
FEART RIS TRUHT B | T AT TUHT TS AT b A SATehg aard TEI=dl qierd Far T
= FEIEEAT 79 I 935 A1 FHARMAE diad qdT JTAAREEH] TedRIl IRIUH G | Ih diaq
JIT ATTARERHT e FHARIGNG AT TEGTHHT FHANIEEATS TEHNIAr IRIgUHT a7 | 9q1d,
A=Yk ®IHT Digital Platform &1 HTLAHATE Ui THT THAHT ToTT FIATATZIRT ITETHT FMART FHARIEEHATS
arfersr famr @ fvwet 5 |

TATAF QATTHT HOHRT gTHE T el faaoT:

AfdeF I 059 /05 AT fAfd 053 AW AU 45 Td TFI FLATH 35 o afie AR JHAENE
AT QTATTHT TRATTF STARIAIR] TRHATS FidAlaed TH 3 AT FoATeleh, JAATdRY SARHTE%

TRATE AT T 3 9T FodTes qa7 Q ST @ goaTde THd T (AF FHINTH 9 ST qoaTed
GFATT @ STTASRT TRISH =M |

q. T ST. JAES TAH qeeT TEATTF THE

R ot fawar drgare RECIEED TAFTIRY THE

3. AT IHE qaEr T ATAR HIF FHE

¥, 1 g @qra RECIEES I THE

Y. = fqo gETe STl LESIEE] AR FHE

& Al THAT A BECSICEY FEAHTIRI THE

o oY dg A dAA LECITE T

Aqifder 99 2059/053 HI AGIHT ool FIATTRT STFAT 33 qaT A&k THH! AR SRR TS
=ATEg, |

AEFEAE fFaE T el
Wi a9 059/05R AT FEAT ATRTHT FREH ATSHISAH THH FIATSTH S |

Y I§ TUTHIfAR HTEATAT:

U ARETH] FEIT F=TAT T Al AET 4 a6 A AT oA18 A1) TRATRUR G | TS FLAT
7 A qvg A, AT FAaRurerT T MTeR ave ST, FEAT JUMTeliel TaEfiTd g qoT Toiiae &HT
FHSTHT AR ATSe A fqear faguet g

-9- 2Q 3 a1ffed Ufddgal 20Ta/TR
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g ATHIT qAT U7 UaTE -

AR THRATAT [FFd, qATaIF 9T AT ATTHEIEE TTUHl TEaRT T4T [aeardel qedr FATATAl
ETHIETE T IcaTed TATERE®! B | FLATH EEIH0 UF BRIAR (e N7 Jeael qar il &q9T
FEART TATS &7 Uesh HeTTHIaew, SAREHT HeTTHIae®, qUTe I A, HrIAT TR FHaTerd, Tl
frdra= a7e, TUTd Web TaT=I [AAdE, 9% AR AT 99 Jued [afads qar Turd qeehRepT FFaead
fHeFTIe®aTe TUE! TEdNT ¥ FEHTEIIq TodATad AiAfdH] qThare glad ATAR Joha TEe, |

AL, FEATHT AT AT F T TS TATTETRT ATES UbTg=ard HT T &FAT, dATe TTI<IeTeh
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ASSOCIATES

lndependentAuditor’sRepoﬂ CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders of Best Finance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Best Finance Company Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and the statement of
profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the company as at Ashadh 32, 2082 (July 16, 2025), and of its financial performance and its cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ICAN’s
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of the
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

an accrual basis and following the Guidance Note on
Interest Income Recognition, 2025 issued by NRB read
with the Carve-Out Alternatives provided for Bank and
Financial Institutions (BFIs) under NFRS - g issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)
dated 2082.05.09. Though accrual basis of income
recognition is prescribed in general, the guidelines require
interest income on Stage 3 (with overdue of more than 3
months) or Purchased or Originated Credit to be
recognized on cash basis whereas for Impaired Financial
Assets, interest should be recognized on Coupon interest
rate applied on principal outstanding. Given the lack of
system capability to suspend recognition of income on the
basis of overdue status of loan on regular basis, manual
intervention will be required in interest recognition
process and hence create risk of improper application of
the guidance note. This may, in turn, have an effect on
recognition of interest income by the company.

Thus, we have considered it as a Key Audit Matter.

S.N | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response
1 Interest Recognition Our audit approach regarding verification
The interest income of the BFIs’ has to be recognized on | : 53‘3955 of interest recognition
included:

a. Obtaining clear understanding of the
process of accrual of interest income
on loans and advances in the Core
Banking Software of the company.

b. Test check of the interest income
booking with manual computation.

T+9771452080/7 /08 /10 E info@sar.com.np
Address 64 Bishal Basti "Ka". Bishal Nagar, GPO Box 4585, Kathmandu, Nepal
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Investment Valuation, Identification, and
Impairment

Investment of the company comprises of investment in
government bonds, T-bills, development bonds and
investment in quoted and unquoted equity instruments.
The valuation of the aforesaid securities has been done in
compliance with NFRS ¢ and NRB Directive no. 8. The
investment in the government and NRB bonds and T-bills
should be recognized on reporting date on Amortized cost
basis whereas other investments in equity instruments,
other than those held for trading, should be valued at Fair
Value through Other Comprehensive Income.

Given the varieties of treatments recommenoded for
valuation of investment based on nature of cash flow, the
business model adopted, complexity of calculations and
the significance of amount involved in such investments,
saEe has been considered as Key Audit Matter in our
audit.

Our audit approach regarding verification
of process of investment valuation,
identification and impairment included:

a. Review of the investment of the
company and its valuation having
reference to NFRS issued by the
Accounting Standard Board of Nepal
and NRB Directive 4 read with 8.

b. We assessed the nature of expected
cash flow of the investments as well as
the business model adopted by the
management on the basis of available
evidence/circumstances and ensured
that classification of investment is
commensurate with nature of cash flow
and management intention of holding
the investment.

c. For the investment valuation that is
done at amortized cost, we checked the
EIR and amortization schedule on test
basis.

d. For the investment valued through OCI
for quoted investment, we ensured that
fair valuation has been done at the
closing transaction rate in NEPSE as
on 16.07.2025 and for the unquoted
investment, the fair value has been
taken at cost.

Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per NRB Directive 4 read with NFRS g9- Expected
Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 issued by NRB and
the Carve-Out Alternatives provided for Bank and
Financial Institutions (BFIs) under NFRS - g issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)
dated 2082.05.09, company shall measure impairment
loss on loans and advances as the higher of:

= Amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal
Rastra Bank for loan loss provisioning; and

* Amount determined as per para 5.5. of NFRS 9

As per the norms prescribed by NRB, provision at
prescribed rate should be created on loans and advances
based on overdue status of loans and advances as well as
utilization status of the facility, status of security,
borrower’s whereabouts etc.

As per NFRS 9, impairment of loans and advances should
be determined following an expected credit loss
impairment model. Under the model, impairment is
calculated as probability weighted estimate of credit losses
(i.e present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected
life of the financial instrument. The guidelines issued by
NRB provide a standardized methodology for ECL
calculation, covering asset classification (Stage 1, 2, 3),
estimation of probability of default (PD), loss given default
(LGD), exposure at default (EAD) and incorporation of
forward-looking information. NRB also prescribed a
uniform reporting format for submission of ECL data to
ensure consistency and regulatory compliance.

Given the fact that impairment of loans and advances
under expected credit loss model require assessment of
future cash flows as well as historical loss experiences of
portfolios. Further, impairment of loans and advances

Our audit approach regarding verification
of impairment of loans and advances
included:

a. Review of the overdue status of loans
and advances by obtaining data from
the system and matched the same with
the NRB 2.2 report.

b. Sample credit files were reviewed,
among other things, from the
perspective of utilization of loans and
advances for intended purpose by way
of scrutiny of financial statements,
account movement, account turnover
ete.

c. Assessment of appropriateness of
parameters used for grouping the
portfolios.

d. Review of appropriateness of historical
data and assumptions including
economic factors used for staging the
portfolio, determination of probability
of default as well as loss given default.
Assessment of appropriateness of
historical recovery data as well as
assessment of realizable value of
collateral securities, along with defined
haircuts, also formed part of or audit
with reference to determination of loss
given default.
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under NRB norms for loan loss provisioning will require
assessment of overdue status of loans and advances and
proper utilization of loan for intended purpose. Hence,
assessment of availability and accuracy of required data
for calculating impairment of loans and advances under
expected credit loss model as well as reasonableness of the
assumptions and economic factors used is regarded as Key
Audit Matter. Also, assessment of availability and
accuracy of required data for calculating impairment of
loans and advances under NRB provisioning norms is
regarded as Key Audit Matter.

4. s | Information Technology General Controls Our  audit approach  regarding
IT controls with respect to recording of transactions, | Information technology of the company
generating various reports in compliance with NRB | is based wupon the Informnation
guidelines and other compliances to regulators is an | Technology Guidelines 2012 issued by
important part of the process. Such reporting is highly | NRB and it included:

dependent on the effective working of Core Banking

Software and other allied systems. a. Understanding the coding system
adopted by the company for various
We have considered this as key audit matter as any control categories of customers.

lapses, validation failures, incorrect input data and wrong
extraction of data may result in wrong reporting of data to
the management, shareholders and regulators

b. Understanding the feeding of the data
in the system and going through the
extraction of the financial information
and statements from the IT system
existing in the company

Checking of the user requirements for
any changes in the regulations/ policy
of the company

C.

d. Reviewed the reports generated by the
system on sample basis. We verified
the interest income and expense
booking regarding loan and deposit on
test basis with the CBS of the company.

e. We relied on the IT' audit conducted by
the company.

f. We verified the provisioning of the
loan and advances based on ageing on
the test check basis as on 16.07 2025.

Information Other than Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Report, Report of the Director’s Report and Chairman’s Statement but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Such information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the management,

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’ report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes pubic
disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected
to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 and Company
Act, 2063

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the branch offices of the
company, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose of the audit;
the financial statements including the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared in all material
respect in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the
books of accounts of the Company; and the accounts and records of the Company are properly maintained
in accordance with the prevailing laws.
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To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we
observed that the loans have been written off as specified; the business of the Company was conducted
satisfactorily, and the Company’s transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not
come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board of directors or any director or
any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the
Company or committed any misappropriation of the funds of company.

Partner T

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: December 22, 2025

UDIN No.: 251223CA00598Y8sDH
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Best Finance Company Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As on 32 Ashad 2082 (16 July 2025) Amount in NPR
Particulars Note 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 232,056,695 267,101,413
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 1,432,613,122 240,544,182
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3 - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.4 - -
Other trading assets 4.5 - -
Loan and advances to B/FIs 4.6 - 19,760,000
Loans and advances to customers 4.7 3,860,650,060 3,907,371,920
Investment securities 4.8 623,526,372 1,592,894,563
Current tax assets 4.9 48,678,549 16,423,930
Investment in subsidiaries 4.10 - -
Investment in associates 4.11 - -
Investment property 4.12 260,520,237 280,124,526
Property and equipment 4.13 295,028,278 304,484,013
Goodwill and Intangible assets 4.14 2,388,761 3,378,149
Deferred tax assets 4.15 73,439,212 28,320,689
Other assets 4.16 39,428,127 36,592,125
Total Assets 6,868,329,413 6,696,995,510
Liabilities
Due to Bank and Financial Instituions 4.17 40,852,477 24,669,231
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - -
Derivative financial instruments 4.19 - -
Deposits from customers 4.20 5,713,369,050 5,435,166,270
Borrowing 4.21 - -
Current Tax Liabilities 4.9 - -
Provisions 422 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 4.15 - -
Other liabilities 423 176,024,103 199,431,641
Debt securities issued 4.24 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 4.25 - -
Total liabilities 5,930,245,630 5,659,267,142
Equity
Share capital 4.26 890,424,236 854,816,779
Share premium 14,947,992 14,947,992
Retained earnings (558,861,322) (398,486,244)
Reserves 4.27 591,572,877 566,449,841
Total equity attributable to equity holders 938,083,783 1,037,728,368
Non-controlling interest - -
Total equity 938,083,783 1,037,728,368
Total liabilities and equity 6,868,329,413 6,696,995,510
Contingent liabilities and commitment 4.28 169,524,672 179,550,560
Net assets value per share 105.35 121.40
As per our report of even date
S. A. R. Associates,
Date : 22 December, 2025 Sushila Khanal Ram Lal Shrestha  Bishnu Prasad Gyawali Bauddha Raj Aryal Chartered Accountants
Place : Kathmandu Director Director Director Director
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Best Finance Company Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082 (16 July 2025)

Amount in NPR

Particulars Note Current Year Previous Year
Interest income 4.29 560,850,238 601,616,179
Interest expense 4.30 426,316,711 480,356,112
Net interest income 134,533,527 121,260,067
Fee and commission income 431 26,689,934 25,753,348
Fee and commission expense 4.32 405,752 413,309
Net fee and commission income 26,284,182 25,340,039
Net interest, fee and commission income 160,817,710 146,600,106
Net trading income 4.33 - -
Other operating income 4.34 46,267,437 17,929,985
Total operating income 207,085,146 164,530,091
Impairment charge/(reversal) for loans and other losses 4.35 262,101,944 110,996,392
Net operating income (55,016,798) 53,533,699
Operating expense
Personnel expenses 4.36 112,325,093 95,416,482
Other operating expenses 4.37 53,987,685 49,651,039
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.38 25,079,222 27,547,028
Operating Profit (246,408,798) (119,080,850)
Non operating income 4.39 18,409,756 10,258,078
Non operating expense 4.40 2,592,760 29,327,844
Profit before income tax (230,591,802) (138,150,616)
Income tax expense 441 (74,026,037) (37,536,116)
Current Tax 5,505,354 14,001,263
Deferred Tax (79,531,391) (51,537,379)
Profit for the period (156,565,765) (100,614,500)
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank (156,565,765) (100,614,500)
Non-controlling interest - -
Profit for the period (156,565,765) (100,614,500)
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (17.70) (11.77)
Diluted earnings per share (17.70) (11.77)
As per our report of even date
e g oo Ao Rl Kb bl R Chana DA s i
S. A. R. Associates,
Date : 22 December, 2025 Sushila Khanal ~ Ram Lal Shrestha  Bishnu Prasad Gyawali  Bauddha Raj Aryal Chartered Accountants
Director Director Director Director

Place : Kathmandu
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Best Finance Company Limited
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082 (16 July 2025)

Amount in NPR
Particulars Note Current Year Previous Year
Profit for the year (156,565,765) (100,614,500)
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
r?lzialr;i/rglgsastegirfr\cl):lluienvestments in equity instruments 29.228,437 (14.047.132)
Gains/ (losses) on revaluation
Actuarial gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans - 3,683,523
Income Tax relating to above items (8,768,531) 3,109,083
awons|  asso
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Gains/ (losses) on cash flow hedge - -
Exchange gains/ (losses) (arising from translating financial i )
assets of foreign operation)
Income tax relating to above items - -
Reclassify to profit or loss - -
Net other comprehensive income that are or may be i )
reclassified to profit or loss
¢) Share of other comprehensive income of associate ) )
accounted as per equited method
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax 20,459,906 (7,254,526)
Total comprehensive income for the period (136,105,859) (107,869,026)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank (136,105,859) (107,869,026)
Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the period (136,105,859) (107,869,026)
As per our report of even date
S e N G R Kb bl Chan DO o i
S. A. R. Associates,
Date : 22 December, 2025 Sushila Khanal Ram Lal Shrestha  Bishnu Prasad Gyawali Bauddha Raj Aryal Chartered Accountants
Director Director Director Director

Place : Kathmandu
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Best Finance Company Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082 (16 July 2025)

Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 509,042,106 503,163,788
Fees and other income received 26,689,934 24,420,359
Dividend received 7,975,594
Receipts from other operating activities 39,674,113 10,258,078
Interest paid (420,075,518) (472,116,868)
Commission and fees paid (405,752) (413,309)
Cash payment to employees (97,440,159) (84,701,031)
Other expense paid (53,987,685) 1,938,446
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities 3,497,039 (9,474,943)
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets (1,372,695,671) (593,725,151)

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

(1,192,068,940)

(63,459,042)

Placement with bank and financial institutions

Other trading assets

Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 19,760,000 4,915,000
Loans and advances to customers (239,449,059) (472,484,962)
Other assets 39,062,328 (62,696,147)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities 249,852,361 1,082,030,245
Due to bank and financial institutions 16,183,246 (78,103,603)
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank -
Deposit from customers 278,202,780 1,147,435,431
Borrowings -
Other liabilities (44,533,665) 12,698,417
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid (1,119,346,272) 478,830,151
Income taxes paid/received (37,759,973) 1,573,813
Net cash flow from operating activities (1,157,106,244) 480,403,964
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities 891,870,354 (447,071,926)
Receipts from sale of investment securities 105,984,626 23,015,074
Purchase of plant and equipment (19,264,435) (15,297,413)
Receipt from sale of property and equipment 2,956,325 1,370,000
Purchase of intangible assets (494,549) (671,500)
Receipt from sale of intangible assets -
Purchase of investment properties -
Receipt from the sale of investment properties 96,528,213 52,255,609
Interest received 445,994
Dividend received 8,019,718 -
Net cash used in investing activities 1,085,600,253 (385,954,162)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issue of debt securities -
Repayment of debt securities -
Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities -
Repayment of subordinated liabilities -
Receipt from issue of shares 35,607,457 -
Dividend paid -
Interest paid -
Other receipt/payment 853,817 (35,110,385)
Net cash from financing activities 36,461,274 (35,110,385)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (35,044,718) 59,339,417
Cash and cash equivalents at Shrawan 1, 2081 267,101,413 207,761,996
Transfer from Merger - -
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held - -
Cash and cash equivalents at Ashad end 2082 232,056,695 267,101,413
As per our report of even date
Sijan Ratna Shakya Bal Narsingh Gharti Ramji Gautam Khim Lal Paudyal Ram Chandra Devkota CA Sunil Adhikari
In-Charge-Finance and Planning  Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Director Partner
S. A. R. Associates,
Date : 22 December, 2025 Sushila Khanal ~ Ram Lal Shrestha  Bishnu Prasad Gyawali Bauddha Raj Aryal Chartered Accountants
Director Director Director Director

Place : Kathmandu
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Best Finance Company Limited
Statement of distributable profit or loss
For the year ended 32 Ashad 2082 (16 July 2025)
(As per NRB Regulation)
Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Net profit or (loss) as per statement of profit or loss (156,565,765) (100,614,500)
Appropriations:
a. General reserve - (2,030,077)
b. Foreign exchange fluctuation fund - -
c. Capital redemption reserve - -
d. Corporate social responsibility fund 285,890 -
e. Employees' training fund (158,691) (123,414)
f. Other (9,263,829) 10,150,387
i. Gratuity Fair Value Reversal (2,685,530) -
ii. Gain on sale of Investment in Equity Instrument (6,578,299) 10,150,387
Profit or (loss) before regulatory adjustment (165,702,395) (92,617,604)
Regulatory adjustment :
a. Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest received (+) 19,191,450 (1,084,993)
b. Short loan loss provision in accounts (-)/reversal (+) - -
c. Short provision for possible losses on investment (-)/reversal (+) - -
d. Short loan loss provision on Non Banking Assets (-)/resersal (+) 46,817,529 (42,095,255)

e. Deferred tax assets recognised (-)/ reversal (+)

(62,867,671)

(28,320,689)

f. Goodwill recognised (-)/ impairment of Goodwill (+)

g. Bargain purchase gain recognised (-)/resersal (+) - 22,040,429
h. Acturial loss recognised (-)/reversal (+) - 7,519,995
i. Other (+/-) (641,298) -
Net Profit for the Year Available for Distribution (163,202,385) (134,558,117)
Opening Retained Earnings (398,486,244) (226,456,765)
Adjustment +/(-) 2,827,307 (37,471,362)
Distribution:

Bonus shares issued

Cash Dividend Paid

Total Distributable profit or (loss) (558,861,322) (398,486,244)

Sijan Ratna Shakya Bal Narsingh Gharti Ramji Gautam

Khim Lal Paudyal

Ram Chandra Devkota

CA Sunil Adhikari
Partner

In-Charge-Finance and Planning ~ Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Director
S. A. R. Associates,
Date : 22 December, 2025 Sushila Khanal Ram Lal Shrestha  Bishnu Prasad Gyawali Bauddha Raj Aryal Chartered Accountants
Place : Kathmandu Director Director Director Director
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1. Reporting Entity
Best Finance Company Limited (referred to as 'The Financial Institution" hereinafter) is a national level finance company
domiciled in Nepal, registered as a Public Limited Company under Companies Act, 2063 & Bank and Financial Institution
Act, 2073. The Financial Institution is licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank as a Class “C” financial institution. During the
financial year 2075/76, the financial institution merged with Synergy Finance Limited and started joint operation from
2075.04.17. The registered office of the financial institution is in Kamaladi, Nepal. Best Finance Company Limited network
now includes 18 branches and 2 ATM's across 13 districts.

The Company has a primary listing on the Nepal Stock Exchange Limited as "BFC".
2.  Basis of Preparation

2.1  Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Board of Directors in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) and as published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB), Nepal and
pronounced by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) subject to the notice dated 18 July 2022
regarding the Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and in the format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in
Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives, 2081.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except otherwise stated.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements
The Company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB during the
fiscal year 2075/76. To comply the NFRS provisions following dates have been considered for the reporting time

period.
Relevant Financial Statement Nepalese Calendar English Calendar
Comparative SFP* Date 31 Ashad 2081 15 July 2024
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2080 - 31 Ashad 2081 17 July 2023-15 July 2024
NFRS SFP* Date 32 Ashad 2082 16 July 2025
NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2081 - 32 Ashad 2082 16 July 2024-16 July 2025
*SFP- Statement of Financial Position

2.3  Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is the Company's functional currency. All
financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except were indicated otherwise.

2.4  Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments
The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to suit its circumstances and operating
environment most appropriately. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in respect of items where
the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial
statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

The accounting policies have been included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements and the
effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

The NFRS requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements. The Company applies
estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are
revised and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes wherever the
estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

2.4.1 Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Company is satisfied that
the Company has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment,
the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating to present and future conditions,
including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital resources.

2.4.2 Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Where the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Statement of Financial
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Position can be derived from active markets, they are derived from observable market data. However, if
this is not available, judgment is required to establish fair values. The valuation of financial instruments is
described in more details in Note 3.4 under “Fair Value of financial assets and liabilities”. As per NFRS 13,
Fair valuation of assets and liabilities require significant management judgments when observable market
data are not available.

2.4.3 Defined Benefit Plans
The cost of the defined benefit obligations and the present value of their obligations are determined
using actuarial valuation. Staff gratuity and accumulated leave has been considered as the defined benefit
obligation for actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount
rates, future salary increments, mortality rates and possible future pension increments, if any. Due to the
long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to uncertainty. All assumptions are reviewed at
each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of Nepal government
bonds with maturities corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality
rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Future salary increment and pension increment are based
on expected future salary increment rates of the Bank.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The Company is required to adopt and apply the accounting policies in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting
Framework (NFRS). The accounting policies are applied consistently with changes, if any and are disclosed with
the financial impact to the extent possible. When policies are not guided by the reporting framework, NFRS, other
reporting standards and generally accounting principles are followed.

New standards issued but not yet effective

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal, (ICAN) has issued a new version of NFRS on 11th Ashadh 2077,
(NFRS 2018) which covers NFRS 17 Insurance Contract. However, the effective date of such new NFRSs is 1st
Shrawan 2082 onwards and this NFRS does not expected to have a significant impact on the financial information.
Further, NFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts is not yet effective.

New standards and interpretations not adopted
All Accounting standards along with carve outs, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN)
has been incorporated.

2.7.1 Availment of Carve-outs Notified by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal

1. Carve-out: 1- NFRS-9: Financial Instruments (Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all
previous years which is the part of effective interest rate)

As per NFRS-9, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses
while calculating the effective interest rate. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

This Carve-out states that the effective interest rate calculation shall include all fees and points paid or
received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably. The Bank has availed this Carve-
out in the case of loans and advances for Financial Year 2081/82 and has not considered all fees and points
paid or received which are impracticable to measure reliably while determining effective interest rate. As
a result of this alternative treatment, the Bank has excluded the full amount of upfront loan management
fees or commission received on loans and advances in the calculation of effective interest rate for the
loan. The upfront fees and commission are recognized as income in the same period; the loan is approved.

Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the discounting is
material.

3.  Significant Accounting Policies

31

Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of Group have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following
material items in the Statement of Financial Position:

. Financial assets, held for trading are recorded in the statement of financial position at fair value and the
changes in the fair value have been routed through Statement of Profit or Loss.
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Auvailable for sale investments (quoted) are measured at fair value and the changes in the fair value have been
routed through Statement of Other Comprehensive Income.

Liabilities for defined benefit obligations and staff loans provided at subsidized interest rates as per Employee
Bylaws of the Group and are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit obligation less the fair
value of the plan assets.

Financial assets, Investment in Government Bonds are recorded in Statement of Financial Position at
amortized cost.

3.2  Basis of Consolidation

i.

ii.

iii.

iv.

vi.

Business Combinations

For the purpose of business combination, acquisition method has been adopted as prescribed by the NFRS-3;
“Business Combination”. In the statement of financial position, the acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities are initially recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date. The results of
acquired operations are included in the consolidated statement of income from the date on which control
is obtained. The cost of an acquisition are measured as the difference between the fair value of the assets
obtained and the fair value of purchase consideration paid. The excess of the purchase consideration paid
over the fair value of the asset has been recognized as goodwill. The excess of the fair value of the asset
obtained and the purchase consideration paid has been recognized as gain on bargain purchase and credited
to Statement of Profit or Loss immediately.

Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)

The Group presents non-controlling interests in its consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from the equity of the owners of the parent. The Group attributes the profit or loss and each
component of other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests.
The proportion allocated to the Bank and non-controlling interests are determined on the basis of present
ownership interests. The Group also attributes total comprehensive income to the owners of the Bank and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Bank. The Bank is presumed to control an investee when
it is exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. At each reporting date the Bank reassesses whether
it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of
control mentioned above.

Loss of Control

When the Bank loses control over a Subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the former
subsidiary from the consolidated statement of financial position. The Bank recognizes any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at its fair value when control is lost and subsequently accounts for it and for
any amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary in accordance with relevant NFRSs. That fair value shall
be regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset in accordance with relevant NFRS or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture. The Bank
recognizes the gain or loss associated with the loss of control attributable to the former controlling interest.

Special Purpose Entity (SPE)

Special purpose entity is a legal entity (usually a limited company of some type or, sometimes, a limited
partnership) created to fulfil narrow, specific or temporary objectives. SPE are typically used by companies to
isolate the firm from financial risk. There are no special purpose entities within the Group’s holding structure.

Transaction Elimination on Consolidation

The effect of all intra-group transactions and outstanding balances, including realized and unrealized income
and expenses are eliminated in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements as per NFRS 10
“Consolidated Financial Statement.

3.3  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with B/FIs, money at call & short notice and highly liquid
financial assets with original maturities of three months or less from the acquisition dates that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term
commitments.

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position. Statement of Cash
Flows has been prepared by using the ‘Indirect Method’ in accordance with NAS 07- Statement of Cash Flows.
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3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Recognition

The Company initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position
when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The Company initially
recognize loans and advances, deposits and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities issued on the date that
they are originated which is the date that the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government securitiecs, NRB bond or
deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which the Company commits
to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized on
trade date at which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

A.

Classification

L

1L

Financial Assets

The Company classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on
the basis of the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.

The two classes of financial assets are as follows:

i. Financial assets measured at amortized cost
The Company classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and

* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

ii. Financial asset measured at fair value
Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value. Financial
assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) if they are held for trading
or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction cost is
directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such assets are
subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in Statement of Profit or
Loss.

* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition, the
Company makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the instrument is
to be recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as financial assets at fair value though
other comprehensive income. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities
The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as
follows;

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or are
designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly
attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Subsequent
changes in fair value are recognized at profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost
All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently
measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.
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C. Measurement
Financial assets at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by instrument basis)
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in
equity instruments. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading. These elected
investments are initially measured at fair value. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
‘Fair Value Reserve’. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss on disposal
of the investments.

A financial asset is held for trading if:
* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

»  oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument or a financial guarantee.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the
Finance’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment
and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably. Dividends recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
are included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in
equity instruments which are not held for trading.

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

A financial asset that meets the amortized cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing
the gains and losses on them on different bases.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or
losses arising on re-measurement recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized
in Statement of Profit and Loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognized when the
Company’s right to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the
investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is held for trading or is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

» It has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

*  oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

»  Itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument
A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

*  Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise;

*  The financial liability forms part of a company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
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is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company’s
documented risk management or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided
internally on that basis; or

» It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and NFRS 9 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with NFRS 9.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The net gain or loss recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
recognized in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in
which case these effects of changes in credit risk are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. The remaining
amount of change in the fair value of liability is always recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss. Changes
in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income
are reflected immediately in retained earnings and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that
are subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest
expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Interest Expenses’ line item.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial asset.

Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by
the Company is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred),
and the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed)
and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in
profit or loss.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company continues to recognize the
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in
the value of the transferred asset.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or expired.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between
the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of
Profit or Loss.
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3.4.1 Determination of Fair Value
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable,
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair value of a liability reflects
its non-performance risk.

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices
for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. If
a market for a financial instrument is not active, the Company establishes fair value using a valuation
technique. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially
the same, discounted cash flow analyses.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction price
— i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair value of
a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such fair value
is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(without modification) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable
markets, then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition of the instrument. In other
cases, the difference is not recognized in profit or loss immediately but is recognized over the life of the
instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed, transferred or sold, or the fair value
becomes observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at cost, considering the non-trading of promoter shares up to
the date of balance sheet, the market price of such shares could not be ascertained with certainty. Hence,
these investments are recognized at cost net of impairment, if any.

3.4.2 Implementation of NFRS 9 -Expected Credit Loss

The measurement of impairment losses across the categories of financial assets under Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard - NFRS 9 on “Financial Instruments” (NFRS 9) requires judgement, in particular,
the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining
impairment losses. Accordingly, Finance reviews its individually significant loans and advances portfolio
at each reporting date to assess whether an impairment loss is to be recognized in the Income Statement.
In particular, the Management’s judgement is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. In estimating these cash flows, Management
makes judgements about a borrower’s financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying
collateral (foreclosure) and expected cash from operations. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits,
and the workout strategy and estimate of cash flows considered recoverable. These estimates are based on
assumptions about several factors and hence actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the
impairment allowance made.

Following NFRS 9, the Finance’s Expected Credit Loss (ECL) calculations are outputs of complex models
with several underlying assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies.
Elements of Finance’s ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

+ Criteria for qualitatively assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR)
and if so, allowances for financial assets measured on a Lifetime Expected Credit Loss (LT - ECL)
basis.

* Segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

* Various statistical formulas and the choice of inputs used in the development of ECL models.
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* Associations between macroeconomic inputs, such as GDP growth, inflation, interest rates, exchange
rates and unemployment and the effect of these inputs on Probability of Default (PDs).

* Forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings.
* Coupon rate of loan has been considered by the Finance as effective interest rate.

As such, the accuracy of the impairment provision depends on the model assumptions and parameters
used in determining the ECL calculations. Further, Finance has assigned weightages for base (normal)
case, best case and worst-case scenarios when assessing the probability weighted forward looking
macro-economic indicators.

The institution applies NFRS 9 for the recognition and measurement of financial instruments, utilizing
a forward-looking General ECL model to calculate impairment provisions for loans and receivables.
Impairment provisions are not recognized for receivables that have not been accrued or accounted for.

Under NFRS 9, impairment assessments are categorized into two main approaches:
. Individual Impairment
*  Collective Impairment

Individual Impairment

The Institution shall test objective evidence of impairment for Individually Significant Loans (ISL). If an
ISL evaluated under the objective evidence test for impairment does not require an individual impairment
provision, it is then assessed under the collective impairment framework having categorized within the
appropriate risk bucket. Conversely, loans that have already undergone individual assessment and have
been assigned an impairment provision are excluded from the collective impairment assessment. All Stage
3 assets shall be subject to individual impairment.

Modality for Cash Flow Estimations

* The Credit Business Departments and/or Recovery Department shall determine the future cash inflows
of the ISL with objective evidence of impairment and stage 3 loans based on historical repayment
patterns and anticipated future cash flows as agreed with the customer.

* The expected timing of the cash flows shall be estimated based on the current status of the recovery
process.

* The basis of the assumption and methodology adopted to forecast future cash flows shall be approved
by Head of Recovery Department.

»  The future cash flows shall be estimated considering Forced Sales Value (FSV) of mortgaged/foreclosed
properties considering the projections with substantial evidence.

*  Valuation of mortgaged/foreclosed properties shall be done internally or through external valuators for
the purpose of computation of ECL under this policy.

Measurement of ECL of ISLs

ECL is measured as the present value of cash shortfalls, which is the difference between the cash flows
due to the entity under the contract and the cash flows the institution expects to receive. It is calculated by
discounting the future cash flows using the contract interest rate or effective interest rate.

Collective Impairment
All contracts that are not subject to individual impairment shall be subject to collective impairment,
determined by their respective segment classification

Staging
For the purposes of impairment and income recognition, financial assets under the scope of impairment
requirement shall be classified into stage 1,2 or 3 within each portfolio segment.

Stage 1 - All loans and advances other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets and those required to be differently categorized by NRB guidelines, are classified
at initial recognition as stage 1.

Stage 2 - Upon subsequent review, any loans, and advances where there is a significant increase in
credit risk are classified as stage 2.

Stage 3 - Any loans and advances where an actual default has taken place are classified as stage 3.
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Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) financial assets: Financial assets which are credit impaired
on initial recognition are categorized within Stage 3 with a carrying value already reflecting the LTECL.

Criteria or Indicators of Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR)

The following criteria or indicators shall be considered to assess SICR:
*  More than 30 days past due

*  Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk (eg future cash flows) for an individual obligor (or
pool of obligors)

»  Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to financial difficulties

*  Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries within which a borrower operates

*  Borrowers affected by macroeconomic conditions based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.
* Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/rescheduling.

*  Credit Quality Indicators determined as per internal credit assessment of performing loans which are
subject to individual monitoring and review, are weaker than that in the initial recognition

*  Both qualitative and quantitative factors shall be considered while assessing whether there has been
significant increases in credit risk.

»  Exposure on borrower whose business/project is not in operation with overdue of up to 30 days as at
reporting date.

Transfer criteria between stages

* Transfer From Stage 2 to Stage 1: Where there is evidence of significant reduction in credit risk, the
institution shall upgrade such exposure from Stage 2 to Stage 1.

+  Transfer Out of Stage 3: Though the conditions for an exposure to be classified in Stage 3 no longer
exist, the institution shall continue to monitor for a minimum probationary period of 90 days to upgrade
from Stage 3.

* For restructured/rescheduled exposures: The institution shall monitor restructured/rescheduled
exposures classified under Stage 3 for a minimum probationary period of 24 months before upgradation.

Upgrading of stages for exposures shall be executed by the Credit Risk Management Department.
Methodology of ECL Impairment

Life-time Expected Credit Losses

Lifetime ECLs represent the expected credit losses arising from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The institution shall estimate the likelihood of default occurring during the
instrument’s expected life. Lifetime ECLs are recognized for contracts in Stage 2 and Stage 3, representing
the expected credit losses arising from all potential default events over the expected life of the financial
asset.

12 month expected credit losses

The 12-month ECL represents a portion of the lifetime ECL, specifically the credit losses expected from
default events that may occur within the 12 months following the reporting date. For Stage 1 contracts,
a 12-month ECL is recognized, which reflects the lifetime expected credit loss on the asset, weighted by
the probability of default occurring within the next 12 months. This is distinct from the full lifetime ECL,
which considers the entire duration of the financial instrument.

Method of calculating ECL
The ECL computation methodology is as follows.

ECL=PD x LGD x EAD x DF

Where:

PD : Probability of Default

LGD: Loss Given Default

EAD: Exposure at Default

DF : Discount Factor

The institute computes ECL using three main components; a probability of default (PD), a loss given default
(LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD) under the collective assessment. These parameters are generally
derived from developed statistical models and historical data and then adjusted to reflect forward-looking
information.
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PD -  The probability of default represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial
obligations either over the next 12-months (12m PD) or over the remaining lifetime (Lifetime
PD) of the obligation.

LGD — The loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a
given time.

EAD — The exposure at default represents the expected exposure in the event of a default.

Estimation of PD
The PD represents the likelihood of default within a given time horizon (12 months for Stage 1 and lifetime

for Stage 2 and 3).

Probability of default is computed using transition matrix as NFRS 9 requires point-in-time (PIT) PDs.
Therefore, through-the-cycle (TTC) PDs needs to be converted into PIT PDs. Transition matrix based on
days past due information for past 5 years is analyzed to establish TTC PDs and establish credit index
based on the historical information. Year on year transition is taken into account on a monthly basis. All
these PDs are calculated for the summarized product segments.

Forward Looking Information — EFA Calculation

The Through-the-Cycle (TTC) PDs is converted into Point-in-Time (PIT) PDs using a scoring platform.
The Scorecard analysis is conducted using several quantitative macroeconomic variables, with weightages
for each variable calculated based on the correlation between the macroeconomic variable and the Weighted
Average PD for the corresponding period across all product segments combined.

Since the products shall be segmented into different categories for estimating forward-looking PD rates,
the correlation between the default events of each product segment and the macroeconomic variables is
calculated separately. This approach ensures that accurate scores are assigned for deriving Point-in-Time
PD rates specific to each product segment.

The institution shall rely on broad range of quantitative forward-looking information as economic inputs
such as the following in its Eco model. These inputs are mainly extracted from “World Economic Outlook
Database” of International Monetary Fund (IMF) website.

Quantitative inputs Code

Current Account Balance-Percent of GDP CURR

Unemployment Rate-Unemployment, total (% of total labour force) (modelled ILO
estimate) UNEMP

Inflation, average consumer prices-Percent change INF

Gross Domestic Product, constant prices-Percent change GDP
Gross National Savings-Percent of GDP-(Units) GNS
General Government Revenue-Percent of GDP-(Units) REV
Gross Government Debt — Percent of GDP-(Units) GGD

Following macroeconomic forecasts has been considered under Base Case:

Macro-economic indicator FY2081-82| FY 2082-83 | FY 2083-84 | FY 2084-85 | FY 2085-86

Base Case

GDP 4.50% 5.48% 5.04% 5.00% 5.00%
Inflation 4.84% 5.23% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Unemployment 11.07% 11.11% 11.14% 11.18% 11.21%
g:g:ﬁtt OAf"(C}‘ggt Balance, 0.66% 2.77% 3.18% 3.27% 3.47%
General Government o o o o o
Revenue, Percent of GDP 19.45% 20.53% 21.47% 22.06% 22.44%
gzgfr;ﬁ‘;f?xgp(}m“ 49.36% 49.78% 49.59% 49.35% 49.00%
Gross National Savings, 36.98% 37.18% 36.83% 35.92% 35.16%

Percent of GDP
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Estimation of LGD
LGD is the percentage of the loan that the institution expects to lose if the borrower defaults. It is influenced by
factors such as collateral, recovery rates, and workout costs.

The LGD is the percentage of the loan that the institution expects to lose if the borrower defaults. It is influenced
by factors such as collateral, recovery rates, and workout costs.

The LGD shall be calculated in following order:
(i) Historical actual recovery rates shall be used in first place.

(i) If historical rates are unavailable, LGD shall be calculated based on valuation (prudential floors) for ECL
calculation as outlined in NRB guideline considering disposal time and costs until expected disposal of
collateral or assets. However, value of collateral or assets for loans that have defaulted and not realized within
5 years of default, shall not be used for determining loss or recovery rates. The management shall decide
LGD floor for portfolio or collateral in such case from time to time in order to estimate account disposal time
and costs until expected disposal of collateral or assets with minimum floor rate of 10%.

(iii) If such net realizable value of collateral or other sources is reliably undeterminable or where the institution is
unable to compute LGDs due to lack of data or inputs, LGD of 45 per cent for such credit exposures shall be
applied with approval of Board of Directors.

Haircut to collateral value for recovery expense and non-recovery shall be considered at the rates prescribed
in ECL guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank.

Estimation of EAD

EAD is the estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account expected changes in the exposure
after the reporting date, including repayments of the principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or
otherwise and expected draw downs on committed facilities.

For loans and receivables with contractual maturity loans balances is taken up to the remaining maturity based on
the repayment pattern. Mainly mid-year balances in the repayment schedule are taken by discounting them to the
reporting date. For unutilized credits and other off-balance sheet items credit conversion factor is used to get the
EAD.

The calculation varies depending on the type of credit product.

Term Loans
EAD is calculated based on the loan’s amortization schedule, expected future exposure and undrawn commitments.

For these products, EAD is based on historical usage patterns. A higher CCF is applied to the unused credit limit,
as borrowers are likely to draw down more credit before defaulting.

Off Balance Sheet Exposures
If data for off-balance sheet exposures is unavailable, the Credit Conversion Factors specified by NRB shall be
applied.

Scenario probability weighting

In order to capture the prevailing economic conditions into Economic Factor Adjustment (EFA) to incorporate the
expected credit loss in determining the impairment for collectively assessed portfolios, the Bank used following
weightages for the expected economic scenarios.

Economic Scenario New Weightages
Best 11%
Base 68%
Worst 21%

Impairment of investment in an equity instrument classified as fair value through other comprehensive income

Objective evidence of impairment of investment in an equity instrument is a significant or prolonged decline in
its fair value below its cost. Impairment losses are recognized by reclassifying the losses accumulated in the fair
value reserve in equity to profit or loss. The cumulative loss that is reclassified from equity to profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment, and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss recognized previously in profit or loss.
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Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost - Loans & Advances under NFRS 9:

Loans and advances to banks, financial institutions, and customers have been measured at amortized cost in
accordance with NFRS 9. As permitted by the carve-out provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Nepal (ICAN) until FY 2082/83, the contractual coupon rate has been applied as the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR) for the purpose of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) computation.

Particulars Principal Outstanding ECL Provision
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

Loans and

i‘;ﬁ?&‘zgt 3,476,243,138 | 249,536,719 | 531,016,575 | 51,390,785 | 39,358,856 | 168,143,654
Cost

Analysis of Loans & Advances as on Ashadh End 2082 Amount in NPR

Particulars ECL Amount

Loans and advances at Amortized cost
Agriculture 20,745,573
Construction 38,095,720
Consumption 63,069,190
Finance Insurance Real Estate 39,603,650
Fishery 175,492
Metal Machinery Electronic Equipment 5,233,909
Other Services 337,128
Others 32,827,474
Production Food 2,186,583
Production Non Food 23,839,593
Tourism Service 9,708,559
Transport Communication Public Utilities 2,215,769
Wholesale Retailer 20,854,655
Impairment Allowance under NFRS 9 258,893,295
Total Loan and advances 4,256,796,431
ECL Coverage % 6.08%

Interest income has been recognized in line with the Guidance Note on Interest Income Recognition, 2025 issued
by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).

Impairment of financial assets has been assessed under paragraph 5.5 of NFRS 9 and relevant NRB Directives. In
accordance with Clause 16 of NFRS 9 — Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024 and ICAN’s carve-out,
impairment has been recognized at the higher of (i) ECL computed under NFRS 9 and (ii) loan loss provisions as
per NRB Directives.

Details of such impairment are as mentioned below: Amount in NPR
Particulars Year ended Ashad 2082
Impairment as per NFRS 9 (A) 258,893,295
Provision as per NRB (B) 503,901,227
Impairment to be considered (Higher of A or B) 503,901,227
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3.5 Trading Assets
Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Company acquires or incurs principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-
term profit or position taking.

Trading assets and liabilities are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. All changes in fair value are
recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss as regarded as fair value through profit & loss account.

3.6 Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities
For designated and qualifying fair value hedges, the cumulative change in the fair value of a hedging derivative is
recognized in the Statement of Profit or loss in Net trading income. Meanwhile, the cumulative change in the fair
value of the hedged item attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged item
in the statement of financial position and is also recognized in the Statement of Profit or loss in Net trading income.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or where the hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship is discontinued prospectively. For hedged items recorded at
amortized cost, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item on termination and the face value is
amortized over the remaining term of the original hedge using the recalculated EIR method. If the hedged item is
derecognized, the unamortized fair value adjustment is recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit or loss.

The Company currently does not have any derivative assets and derivative liabilities.

3.7 Property and Equipment
A. Recognition and Measurement

The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at cost, if,
and only if:

« It is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
*  The cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the following:

+ the cost of materials and direct labor.
* any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use.

* when the Company has an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and

* Capitalized borrowing costs.

The Company adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment. Neither class of the property and
equipment is measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date. The items of
property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure will
flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are expensed as
incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the difference between
the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized within other income in profit or
loss.

Assets with a value of less than NPR 5,000 are charged off to revenue irrespective of their useful life in the year of
purchase.

B. Capital Work in Progress

Assets in the course of construction are capitalized in the assets under capital work in progress account (CWIP).
At the point when an asset is capable of operating at management’s intended use, the cost of construction is
transferred to the appropriate category of property and equipment and depreciation commences. Where an
obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition
at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site
is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a corresponding liability
is recognized.
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3.8

3.9

C. Depreciation

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their residual
values over their estimated useful life as per management judgment as follows:

Nature of Assets Useful Life (years)
Furniture 5
Equipment 5
Vehicles 7
Computers 5
Building 40
Leasehold As per Lease term

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each statement of
financial position date. The value of the assets fully depreciated but continued to be in use is considered not
material.

Depreciation on new assets shall commence from the month after the month in which the assets is acquired or
capitalized. Where assets are disposed off, depreciation shall be calculated up to the month preceding the month
of such disposal.

D. Derecognition
The carrying amount of Property and Equipment shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an item of property
and equipment shall be included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized (unless on a sale & lease back).
The gain shall not be classified as revenue.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual value are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted, if any.

Intangible Assets/ Goodwill

Goodwill

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business
Combination is recognized as goodwill. Following initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may be impaired.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that it
will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of
expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s carrying
amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately.

Software is amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over its estimated useful life, from the date that it
is available for use. The estimated useful life of software for the current and comparative periods is five years.
Software assets with costs less than NPR. 5,000 are charged off on purchases as revenue expenditure.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Investment Property

Investment property is the land or building or both held either for rental income or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not for sale in ordinary course of business and owner-occupied property. The company holds investment
property as non-banking assets that has been acquired through the enforcement of security over the loan and
advances.

Non-banking assets (only land and building) are initially recognized at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition the
company has chosen to apply the cost model allowed by NAS 40- “Investment Property” and since it is not intended
for owner -occupied use, a depreciation charge is not raised.
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the
cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred. If the recognition criteria
are met; and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of, or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses
on the retirement or disposal of an investment property are recognized in the Statement of Profit or loss in the year
of retirement or disposal.

Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the disposal
groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to
sell when:

(i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale;
(i1) they are available-for-sale in their present condition; and
(iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies described above.

3.10 Income Tax

The Company is subject to tax laws of Nepal. Income Taxes have been calculated as per the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 2058. Deferred tax is recorded on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable profits
during the periods in which those temporary differences and tax law carry-forwards become deductible. The
company considers the expected reversal of deferred tax liabilities and projected future taxable income making this
assessment. The amount of the deferred tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term
if estimates of future taxable income during the carry-forward period are reduced.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a. Current Tax
Current tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income. Current income tax assets and liabilities also include adjustments for
tax expected to be payable or recoverable in respect of previous periods.

b. Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rate applicable to the Company as at the reporting date which is expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized, or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilized except:

i.  Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

ii. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the
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temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilized.

iii. Deferred tax relating to items recognized in OCI is recognized in OCI. Deferred tax items are recognized
in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Deposits, debts securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Deposits

The Company accepts deposits from its customers under account, current, term deposits and margin accounts
which allows money to be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These transactions are recorded on the
Company's books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the Company and represents the amount
owed by the Company to the customer.

Debt Securities Issued
It includes debentures, bonds or other debt securities issued by the Company. Deposits, debt securities issued,
and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus incremental direct transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at their amortized cost using the effective interest method, except where the Group designates
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. However, debentures issued by the Company are subordinate to the
deposits from customer.

The Company has not issued such instruments till date.

Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the claims of
depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The Company does not have any of such subordinated
liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and when the amount
can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognized as asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is:
» apossible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

» present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognized because:

0 it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or

o the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets.
Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
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3.13

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the ordinary activities
of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity
participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability
of income is not probable. The Company’s revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, foreign
exchange income, cards income, remittance income, banc-assurance commission, etc. and the bases of incomes
recognition are as follows:

a.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. An effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life
of financial asset or liability to the carrying amount of the asset or liability. The calculation of the effective
interest rate includes all transaction costs fees and points paid or received that are integral parts of the effective
interest. The transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets.

Interest income presented in the statement of profit or loss includes:

Interest income on financial assets measured at amortized cost is calculated on an effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of financial assets unless the financial asset is written off either partially or
fully. These financial assets include loans and advances including staff loans, investments in government
securities, investments in corporate bonds, investments in NRB Bond and deposit instruments, inter-bank
lending, etc.

NFRS 9 requires recognition of interest income on the financial assets measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate. Nepal Rastra Bank has on July 27, 2025, issued Guidance Note on Interest
Recognition, 2025 wherein it has provided transitional arrangement plan towards full implementation
for NFRS 9. This guideline allows banks and financial institutions to recognise interest on loans and
advances based on coupon rate of interest for the financial year 2081-82 and 2082-83 and thereafter from
the financial year 2083-84 use the effective interest rate on loans and advances.

This guideline aims to advance towards full implementation of NFRS 9, the interest income recognition
practice will be transitioned as follows:

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
(FY 2081/82) (FY 2082/83) (FY 2083/84)
Based on effective interest rate applied
on gross carrying amounts for all
financial assets except for old term
loans
Based on deemed effective interest
rate applied for old term loans only
(where integral fees have already been
recognized as income in previous
years)
Based on amortised cost as per NFRS
9
Deemed Effective interest rate for old
term loans is calculated without taking

Interest income

Based on coupon
interest rate applied
on principal
outstanding for

all financial assets
(accrual basis)

Based on coupon
interest rate on
principal outstanding
for all financial assets
(accrual basis)

Stage 1 and Stage
2 Financial Assets

Based on cash Based on cash . .
Stage 3 or . . into account integral fees already
basis approach basis approach . . .
Purchased or . . booked and is applied on amortised
.. .. | (incremental) (incremental)
Originated Credit . . cost
) . . - | Coupon interest rate | Coupon interest rate . .
impaired financial applied on princinal | apolied on princival Effective interest rate of all financial
assets pp p p pp p P3| assets other than old term loans is

outstandin outstandin, .
| & u ne to be calculated based on integral

fees obtained and also considering
discounts, premiums and other integral
costs and is applied on amortised cost.
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3.14

3.15

The Finance has used this provision of this guideline to recognise interest on loans and advances by using the
coupon rate of interest instead of the effective rate of interest.

b.

Fees & Commission

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or significant act
performed whenever the benefit exceeds cost in determining such value. Whenever, the cost of recognizing fees
and commissions on an accrual basis exceeds the benefit in determining such value, the fees and commissions
are charged off during the year.

Dividend Income

Dividend incomes are recognized when right to receive such dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading income, net income from other
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classification
of the equity investment.

Net Trading Income
Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
and unrealized fair value changes, interest and dividends.

Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities classified in this category are those that have been designated by
management upon initial recognition. Management may only designate an instrument at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition when the following criteria are met, and designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis:

*  The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognizing gains or losses on them on a different basis.

*  The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy.

*  The financial instrument contains one or more embedded derivatives, which significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the statement of
financial position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in Net gain or loss on financial assets and
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss is recognized in statement of Profit or Loss. Interest
earned or incurred is accrued in Interest income or Interest expense, respectively, using the effective interest
rate (EIR), while dividend income is recorded in other operating income when the right to the payment has
been established.

Interest expense

Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest
rate method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Company’s trading
operations and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net
trading income.

Employees Benefits

a.

Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus
required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period):

* wages, salaries, and social security contributions,

* paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

» profit-sharing and bonuses and

* non-monetary benefits
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b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings:

i. Defined Contribution Plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as personnel expenses in profit
or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a pre-determined
rate of 10% of the basic salary. The Company does not assume any future liability for provident fund
benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan
The company provides Pension & Gratuity Plan, Retirement Plan and Leave Encashment Plan (in terms of
Annual Leave and Sick Leave) as defined benefits to its employees. These benefits are post-employment
benefit plans and are paid based on length of service. These benefit plans are funded whereas the company
makes earmark investment of these funds. The gratuity plan provides for lump sum payments to vested
employees at retirement or upon death while in employment or on termination of employment for an
amount equivalent defined days’ eligible salary payable for each completed year of service.

The pension plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement or equated payment
till death of the employee (and half thereafter to the spouse of the employee). Further, employees of the
Company are entitled to avail Annual Leave and Sick Leave. The employees can carry forward the un-
availed leave and are entitled to encash the cumulative leave at the time of the retirement. The obligation
under these plans are calculated by a qualified actuary every year using projected unit credit method.

The following are the defined benefit plans provided by the Company to its employees:

a) Leave Salary
The employees of the company are entitled to carry forward a part of their unavailed / unutilized
leave subject to a maximum limit. The employees can encash unavailed/ unutilized leave partially
in terms of Employee Service Byelaws of the company. The Company accounts for the liability for
accumulated leave as per the actuarial valuation.

b) Termination Benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as expense when the company is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal plan to provide termination benefits to
employees as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits are
recognized if the company made an offer for voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will
be accepted and the number of acceptances can be measured reliably. If the benefits are payable in
more than 12 months after the reporting date, they are discounted to their present value.

3.16 Leases
Lease is a contract in which one party provides an asset to the other party for some consideration usually a periodic
payment. The Finance assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. In accordance
with NFRS-16 “Leases”; the Finance recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability, except for
short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets as the
Finance is lessee in all lease arrangements.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Finance uses its incremental borrowing rate. Since the Finance apply NFRS-16; “Leases” to its leases in accordance
with Para C5(b), retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the
date of initial application, it uses incremental borrowing rate which is the interbank borrowing rate/lending of the
Finance.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
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*  Fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

*  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date.

*  The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees
» The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options

»  Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented within other Liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The
lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Finance remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of use
asset) whenever:

*  The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate

e The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is re-measured by discounting the revised lease
payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is due to a change in a floating
interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used)

*  Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case
the lease liability is re-measured based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Finance did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs. They are
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Finance incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on
which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
a provision is recognized and measured under NAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a right-of-use asset, the
costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the right-of use asset. If a
lease transfer ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Finance expects
to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying
asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease. The Finance depreciates Right-of-use assets
from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset.

The right-of-use assets are presented Within Property, plant and Equipment in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position.

The Finance applies NAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified
impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy. Variable rents that do not depend on an
index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments
are recognized as an expense in the period in which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs.

As a practical expedient, NFRS 16 permits a lessee not to separate non-lease components, and instead account
for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Finance has not any non-lease
component associated with the lease.

From FY 2021-22, the company has transitioned from NAS-17 and has applied NFRS-16 for accounting of leases.
All previously classified operating leases are now recognized as right-of-use assets with corresponding lease
liabilities. Each lease payment is allocated between a reduction of the liability and an interest expense. The interest
expense is charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss over the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of
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interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
remaining lease term on a straight-line basis.

The company transitioned into NFRS 16 in accordance with the modified retrospective approach, therefore previous
year comparative figures are not restated. Additionally, the definition of a lease under NAS 17 and its related
interpretation has been retained.

The Bank has applied incremental borrowing rate of 7%. Management has applied judgement and formed
assumptions in relation to assessing the incremental borrowing rate. Management has formed its judgements and
assumptions based on historical experience, internal and external data points.

3.17 Financial guarantee and loan commitment
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.

Loan commitment is the commitment where the Company has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer
or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters
of credit and the Company has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these
financial statements as commitments.

3.18 Share Capital and Reserves
The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the
substance of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets of the
Finance after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Company and distributions
thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in
which they are declared.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of an equity instrument are deducted from the initial measurement
of the equity instruments considering the tax benefits achieved thereon.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, regulatory reserve,
investment adjustment reserve, CSR reserve etc.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained earning
computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

3.19 Earnings per share including diluted earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

There have been no transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date
and the date of the completion of these financial statements which would require the restatement of earnings per
share.

3.20 Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relating to transactions with any of the
company’s other components, whose operating results are reviewed by the management to make decision about
resource allocation to each segment and assess its performance.

The company has classified five operating segments as: Province 1, Madhesh, Bagmati, Gandaki and Lumbini.

3.21 Rounding Off and Comparative Figures
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese figure, rounded off to the nearest rupee. Previous year figure has
been reclassified/ rearranged/ regrouped to facilitate their comparison, where necessary.

4.  Brief Description of Schedules forming part of Financial Statement
The explanatory notes and significant disclosure relating to the financial statements are as follows:
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4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account shall be used for presenting the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial
institutions, money at call and short notice, and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three months
or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used
by the licensed institution in the management of its short-term commitments.

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank

Statutory balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank for compulsory cash reserve, securities purchased from Nepal
Rastra Bank under resale agreement, other deposits with and receivables from Nepal Rastra Bank has been
presented under this account head.

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions
Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities of more than
three months from the acquisition date are presented under this account head

Derivative Financial Instruments
Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign exchange contract etc. held for
trading as well as risk management purposes shall be presented under this head.

Other Trading Assets

Trading assets are those assets that the licensed institution acquires principally for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit shall be presented under this
account head. The other trading asset includes non-derivative financial assets. It includes Government bonds, NRB
Bonds, Domestic Corporate bonds, Treasury bills, Equities etc held primarily for the trading purpose.

Loan and Advances to Banks and Financial Institutions
Loan and advances given to microfinance financial institutions as well as other bank and financial institutions shall

be presented under this head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank and financial institutions shall be
deducted.

Loans and advances to customers
Loan and advances given to microfinance financial institutions as well as other bank and financial institutions shall

be presented under this head. Specific impairment on loan and advance to bank and financial institutions shall be
deducted.

Investment securities

Investments made by the licensed institutions in financial instruments shall be presented under this account head
in three categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss, investment securities
measured at amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Investment other than those measured at amortized cost shall be measure at fair value and changes in fair value shall
be recognized in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income as per the business model adopted by the financial
institutions for the specific securities. Where income from the investment is received in the form of bonus shares,
the valuation of investment shall be made by increasing the number of shares only without changing in the cost
of investment. The financial institutions shall disclose following particulars in respect of investment in shares and
debenture/bond.

a. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in shares of other companies
(1) Name of the company
(2) Type of share (ordinary or preference), in case of preference shares, including the rate of dividend.
(3) Total number of shares subscribed (including bonus shares if received).
(4) Face value per share
(5) The cost price to licensed institution.
(6) Fair value of the shares at the end of the fiscal year.
(7)  Where a company, in which the licensed institution has investment in shares, has not declared dividend
for previous 3 years, particulars indicating the same.

b. Following particulars shall clearly be disclosed in respect of investment in debentures and bonds of other
companies

(1) Name of the company
(2) Rate of Interest
(3) Installment of Debenture/bond subscribed.
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(4) Face value per debenture/bond.
(5) Maturity date of debenture/bond
(6) The purchase price of the debentures/bond
(7) Fair value of the debentures/bond measured at fair value
The financial institution shall recognize impairment loss if any on the investment instruments measured
at amortized cost. The calculation of impairment loss shall be as per requirement of NFRSs.
The financial institution shall recognize, measure, present and disclose the investment instruments as per
the requirement of NFRSs.
4.9  Current Tax
This will include any advance payment made by the licensed institution towards income tax liabilities or other tax
liabilities to the taxing authorities.
4.10 Investment In Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are the entities that are controlled by the bank. Investment made by the bank in its subsidiaries
shall be presented in this head under separate financial statements. Since, the investment amount is eliminated in
consolidation process, no amount shall be presented under group financial statements.
4.11 Investment In Associates
Associates are those entities in which the bank has significant influence but not control over the financial and
operating policies. Investment made by the bank in its associates shall be presented in this head under this account
head.
4.12 Investment Properties
Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment; and non-current assets held for
sale under relevant accounting standard shall be presented under this account head. This shall include land, land
and building acquired as non-banking assets by the Bank but not sold.
4.13 Property and equipment.
All assets of long-term nature (fixed) like land, building, IT equipment, fixtures and fittings, office equipment
and appliances, vehicles, machinery, leasehold developments and capital work in progress owned by the licensed
institution shall be presented under this head.
4.14 Goodwill and intangible assets
Goodwill and intangible assets like computer software both purchased and internally generated, trade mark etc.
shall be presented under this account head.
4.15 Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets recognized as per NFRSs on temporary deductible differences, carry forward of unused tax
losses, changes in tax rate etc. shall be presented under this account head.
4.16 Other Assets
This account will include any other tangible or intangible asset not mentioned above. Assets held for sale, non-
banking assets (other than land or land and building), restricted deposits with central banks, accounts receivable,
interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments and deposit are some of the items to be included under this head.
Liabilities and Equity side
4.17 Due to bank and financial institutions
The balances in accounts maintained with the institution by other local and foreign banks and financial institution
shall be presented under this head. Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing
accounts as well as other amount due to bank and financial institution shall be presented under this account head.
4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
This account head shall also contain the amount of payable to Nepal Rastra Bank. Amount payable to NRB shall
include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort, sale and repurchase agreements,
deposit from NRB etc.
4.19 Derivative Financial Instruments

It includes all derivative liabilities. Derivative instruments like interest rate swap, currency swap, forward foreign
exchange contract etc. held for trading as well as risk management purposes shall be presented under this head.
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4.20

4.21

4.9

4.22

4.15

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

Deposits from customers
All deposit accounts other than deposit from BFIs (local and foreign) and NRB shall be presented under this
account head.

Borrowing

All domestic as well as foreign borrowing other than interbank borrowing and borrowing from Nepal Rastra
Bank shall be presented under this heading. It includes borrowing from Nepal Government, borrowing from other
domestic institutions, borrowing from foreign bank and financial institutions, multilateral development banks etc.

Current Tax Liabilities
The liabilities recognized for the purpose of current income tax, including fees, penalties shall be included under this
head.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when as a result of a past event, the licensed institution has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation. Provision for redundancy, provision for onerous contracts, provision for restructuring, pending
legal issues and tax litigation, credit commitments and guarantees etc. shall be presented under this account head.
Followings are the additional clarification on accounts presented under this account head.

(a) Provision for Redundancy
It shall include benefits payable as a result of employment being terminated or based on a dismissal plan of the
licensed institution. Provision for employees' termination benefits like voluntary retirement scheme shall be
presented under this account head.

(b) Provision for restructuring
Restructuring includes sale or termination of a line of business, closure of business locations or relocation in a
region, changes in management structure, fundamental reorganizations that have a material effect on the nature
and focus of the bank’s operations etc. The provision of restructuring that is recognized as per the requirement
of NFRSs shall be presented under this account head

(¢) Pending legal issues and tax litigation
Provisions recognized for any pending legal issues and tax litigation matters shall be presented under this
account head.

(d) Onerous contracts
Provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the licensed institution
from a contract is lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract. The provision
amount that is recognized for onerous contract as per NFRSs shall be presented under this heading.

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities are the amounts of income taxes payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary
differences, shall be included under this head. Deferred tax liabilities that are recognized as per requirement of
NFRSs shall be presented under this account head.

Other liabilities

Any residual liabilities not captured above, shall be presented under an appropriate head in this account. Liabilities
relating to employees benefits like liabilities for defined benefit obligation gratuity and pension fund, liabilities for
long-service leave, cash settled share based payment liabilities, short-term employee benefits etc., Creditors and
accruals, Interest payable on deposit and borrowing, unearned income, unpaid dividend etc. shall be presented under
this account head.

Debt securities Issued
Debenture, bond or other debt securities issued by bank shall be presented under this broad account head.

Subordinated Liabilities

Liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt securities issued and other
creditors shall be included here. It shall include redeemable preference share, subordinated notes issued, borrowings
etc.

Share Capital

The amount of paid-up share capital of the licensed institution shall be mentioned under this head. Amount credited
in share capital by issuing bonus shares utilizing the accumulated profit and reserves shall also be disclosed under
this heading. This shall include paid up amount of ordinary share capital and equity component of preference
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share capital. The convertible preference shares which include an option for the holder of the shares to convert
the preferred shares into a fixed number of ordinary shares at any time after a predetermined date, irredeemable
preference share and perpetual debt instruments, the equity component that is recognized and measured as per
NFRSs as equity as well shall be presented under this heading.

4.27 Reserve
Licensed institution shall include the amounts received from allocation of profits or retained earnings in connection
with maintaining reserves or created from any other process. Normally, amount shall be credited to this heading
having debited the accumulated profit and while using these reserves, the concerned reserve account shall have to
be debited. Followings are the additional clarification of account head under reserve.

(@)

(b)

©

)

(e

®

@

(h)

®

General Reserve

General reserve is the statutory reserve. In this reserve, the amount transformed from appropriation of net
profit according to the Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 shall be included. No type of dividend (cash
or bonus share) shall be distributed from the amount in general/statutory reserve. Approval of NRB shall be
required in order to use the amount in this reserve.

Exchange Equalization reserve

Exchange equalization reserve is a statutory reserve. A bank which has earned foreign exchange revaluation
gain on foreign currency other than India currency has to allocate 25 percent of such revaluation gain to
this reserve as per provision of the Bank and Financial Institution Act. Any amount allocated to exchange
equalization reserve as per the provision of the Bank and Financial Institutions Act, shall be presented under
this heading.

Fair Value Reserves

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are measured
at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are
derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be presented
under this account head.

Assets Revaluation Reserve

Any reserve created from revaluation of assets (such as Property & Equipment, Intangible Assets, Investment
Property) shall be presented under this heading. Revaluation reserves often serve as a cushion against unexpected
losses but may not be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in market
values and tax consequences of revaluation.

Capital Reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount of those reserves which are in nature of capital and which shall
not be available for distribution of cash dividend. The amount from share forfeiture due to non-payment of
remaining amount for the unpaid shares, capital grants received in cash or kind, capital reserve arising out of
merger and acquisition etc should be presented under this heading.

Special Reserve

Any special reserve that is created as per the specific requirement of NRB directive or special instruction of
NRB shall represent special reserve. The amount allocated to this reserve by debiting retained earning account
shall be presented under this heading.

Capital Redemption Reserve
This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards Redeemable Non-Convertible
Preference Shares.

Dividend Equalization Fund

For the purpose of maintaining uniformity in dividend payment, certain amount of profit during the year of
profit making may be transferred shall be presented under this account head. Dividend may be distributed by
debiting this account with the approval of the Board of Directors and endorsed by the General meeting.

Capital Adjustment/Equalization Fund

Any amount that is allocated from the amount retained profit to a reserve that is created for the raising capital
of the Bank as well as calls is advance amount to make up minimum paid up capital amount shall be presented
under this account head.
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4.28

4.29

4.30

(j) Corporate Social Responsibility Fund
The fund created for the purpose of corporate social responsibility by allocating profit shall be presented under
this account head.

(k) Investment Adjustment Reserve
It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in bank's investments as directed
by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

() Actuarial Gain/Loss Reserve
Actuarial gain or loss that represents change in actuarial assumptions used to value employee obligations shall
be presented under this account head.

(m) Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as per the Directive of
NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of
dividend (cash as well as bonus shares) shall be presented under this account head. The amount allocated to this
reserve shall include interest income recognized but not received in cash, difference of loan loss provision as
per NRB directive and impairment on loan and advance as per NFRSs (in case lower impairment is recognized
under NFRSs), amount equals to deferred tax assets, actual loss recognized in other comprehensive income,
amount of goodwill recognized under NFRSs etc.

(n) Other Reserve Fund
Any reserve created with specific or non-specific purpose (except stated in above) shall be presented under this
by disclosing accounting heads.

Non-Controlling Interest

Non-controlling interest (NCI) is the portion of equity ownership in a subsidiary not attributable to the parent
company, which has a controlling interest and consolidates the subsidiary's financial results with its own. The
bank who has a subsidiary and consolidates the financial statement of subsidiary in its own shall present the
equity portion of the subsidiary that are attributable to the shareholders other than the bank under this account
head.

Share Premium

The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be presented under this
heading. The outstanding amount in this account shall not be considered eligible for distribution of cash
dividend.

Retained Earning
The accumulated profits which have not been distributed to shareholders and has been ploughed back in the
licensed institution’s operations and is free for distribution of dividend to the shareholders shall be presented
under this heading.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Where the Company undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customer for guarantees issued for which an
obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in the financial statement as
contingent liabilities. Where the Company has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of
a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not and the Company has not
made payments. Such commitment amounts are also presented under Contingent Liabilities and commitments

Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Profit or Loss Account

Interest Income

The interest income recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. This heading shall include interest
income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment securities measure at fair value
through profit or loss, cash and and cash equivalent, due from Nepal Rastra Bank, due from BFIs, loan and advances
to staff etc.

Interest expenses

The interest expenses recognized as per NFRSs shall be presented under this head. The interest accrued on deposits
collected, debt securities issued, borrowings obtained, subordinated liabilities, amount due to bank and financial
institutions, due to NRB etc. shall be presented under this heading.
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4.31

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

4.38

4.39

4.40

Fees and commission income

Fee income is earned for diverse ranges of services provided by the bank to its customers. Fee income arises on the
execution of a significant act completed or from provision of services like asset management, portfolio management,
management advisory and service fees etc. Loan documentation fee, loan management fee, consortium fee,
commitment fee, card issuance and renewal fees, prepayment and swap fee, remittance fee, investment banking fee,
asset management fee, brokerage, commission on letter of credit, commission on guarantee, locker rental income,
etc. should be presented under this heading. The fees and commission income that are integral to the effective
interest rate on the financial assets are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate and shall not be
recognized as income, however immaterial amount can be recognized in profit or loss account as income.

Fees and commission expense

Payouts on account of fee and commission for services obtained by the bank shall be presented under this account
head. This account head shall include card related fees, guarantee commission, brokerage expenses etc. The fees
and commission expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on the financial liability are included in the
measurement of the effective interest rate and shall not be recognized as expense.

Net trading income

Trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized interest,
dividend and foreign exchange differences as well as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities
shall be presented under this account head.

Other operating income

Receipt of all other operating income not specifically provided under the income heads above shall be booked and
presented under this head. This shall include foreign exchange revaluation gain, gain/loss on sale of available for
sale securities, dividend on available for sale securities, gain/loss on sale of property and equipment, gain/loss on
sale of investment properties, operating lease income, gain/loss on sale of gold and silver, finance income of finance
lease etc.

Impairment charge/ (reversal) for the loans and other losses

Impairment loss recognized as per NFRSs on loan and other losses shall be presented under this account head.
It shall include impairment charge/reversal on loan and advances to customers, loan and advances to bank and
financial institutions, investment securities, placement with bank and financial institutions, property and equipment,
goodwill and intangible assets, investment properties etc.

Personnel expenses

All expenses related to employees of a bank shall be included under this head. Expenses covered under this head
include employees' salary, allowances, pension, gratuity, contribution to provident fund, training expenses, uniform
expenses, insurance, staff bonus, finance expense under NFRSs, cash-settled share-based payments etc.

Other operating expense

All operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized and presented under this account
head. The expenses covered under this account head shall include office administration expense, other operating
and overhead expense, directors' emoluments, remuneration and non-audit fee paid to auditors, professional and
legal expense, branch closure cost expense, redundancy cost expense, expense of restructuring, impairment of non-
financial assets, expense of corporate social responsibility, onerous lease provisions etc.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Amortization is
the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life. Depreciation measured
and recognized as per NFRSs on property and equipment, and investment properties, and amortization of intangible
assets shall be presented under this account head.

Non-operating income

The income and expenses that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions shall be presented under
this head. The income/expense covered under this account head shall include loan written off, recovery of loan,
redundancy provision, expense of restructuring etc

Income tax expenses
The amount of income tax on net taxable profit shall be recognized and presented under this account head. This
account head shall include current tax expense and deferred tax expense/deferred tax income.
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4.41 Brief Explanations on Accounting Heads of the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

1.

Fair value reserve relating to investment in equity instruments

Net changes in fair value of equity instrument that are measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is
required to be recognized in other comprehensive income shall be recognized and presented under this account
head. The changes may be subsequently reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs
shall also be deducted from the fair value reserve.

Changes in revaluation reserve
Changes in revalued amount of property and equipment, and intangible assets shall be presented under this
account head.

Cash flow hedge

When a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the variability in cash flows attributable
to a particular risk associated with a recognized asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction
that could affect profit or loss, the effective portion of changes in the fair value (losses) of the derivative
is recognized and presented in Other comprehensive income under this account head. The changes may be
subsequently reclassified to profit and loss in accordance with the relevant NFRSs shall also be deducted from
the fair value reserve.

Net actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans

Re-measurement gain/losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and shall be presented
under this account head.

Income tax relating to these items
The income tax relating to the items shown in other comprehensive income shall be presented under this head.
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4.1 Cash and cash equivalent

Amount in NPR

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Cash in hand 35,756,392 34,406,288
Balances with B/FIs 196,300,303 232,695,125
Money at call and short notice - -
Other -
Total 232,056,695 267,101,413
4.2 Due from Nepal Rastra Bank Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Statutory balances with NRB 231,641,986 240,544,182
Securities purchased under resale agreement - -
Other deposit and receivable from NRB 1,200,971,136 -
Total 1,432,613,122 240,544,182
4.3 Placements with Bank and Financial Instituitions Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Placement with domestic B/FIs - -
Placement with foreign B/FIs - -
Less: Allowances for impairment - -
Total - -
4.4 Derivative financial instruments Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Held for trading - -
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Others - -
Held for risk management - -
Interest rate swap - -
Currency swap - -
Forward exchange contract - -
Other - -
Total - -
4.5 Other trading assets Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Teasury bills - -
Government bonds - -
NRB Bonds - -
Domestic Corporate bonds - -
Equities - -
Other - -
Total - -
Pledged -
Non-pledged - -
4.6 Loan and advances to B/FIs Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Loans to microfinance institutions - 20,000,000
Other - -
Less: Allowances for impairment - 240,000
Total - 19,760,000
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4.6.1: Allowances for impairment

Balance at the end of Previous Year 240,000 325,000
Impairment loss for the year: (240,000) (85,000)
Charge for the year (240,000) (85,000)
Recoveries/reversal - -
Amount written off - -
Balance at the end of this year - 240,000
4.7 Loans and advances to customers Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081

Loan and advances measured at amortized cost

4,364,551,287

4,148,931,203

Less: Impairment allowances

(503,901,227)

(241,559,283)

Collective impairment 451,253,518 -
Individual impairment 52,647,710 241,559,283
Net amount 3,860,650,060 3,907,371,920
Loan and advances measured at FVTPL - -
Total 3,860,650,060 3,907,371,920
4.7.1: Analysis of loan and advances - By Product

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Product
Term loans 327,346,406 266,462,430
Overdraft 1,170,367,071 757,210,835
Trust receipt/Import loans -
Demand and other working capital loans 53,313,042 111,707,881
Personal residential loans 819,817,938 786,163,456
Real estate loans 343,576,784 319,151,646
Margin lending loans 281,662,854 343,557,743
Hire purchase loans 137,546,958 130,753,169
Deprived sector loans 142,007,342 187,072,333
Bills purchased -
Staff loans 67,577,350 61,488,738
Other 981,158,037 1,107,639,123
Sub total 4,324,373,782 4,071,207,354
Interest receivable 40,177,505 77,723,849
Grand total 4,364,551,287 4,148,931,203
4.7.2: Analysis of loan and advances - By Currency

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081

Nepalese rupee

4,364,551,287

4,148,931,203

Indian rupee

United State dollar

Great Britain pound

Euro

Japenese yen

Chinese yuan

Other

Total

4,364,551,287

4,148,931,203
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4.7.3: Analysis of loan and advances - By Collateral

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Secured
Movable/immovable assets 3,805,960,296 3,440,487,199
Gold and silver - -

Guarantee of domestic B/FIs

Government guarantee 4,015,316 4,015,316
Guarantee of international rated bank - -
Collateral of export document - -
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt 56,560,569 75,347,395
Collateral of Governement securities - -
Counter guarantee - -
Personal guarantee 124,454,473 142,227,925
Other collateral 333,383,129 410,145,822
Subtotal 4,324,373,783 4,072,223,657
Unsecured 40,177,505 77,723,849
Grant Total 4,364,551,288 4,149,947,506
4.7.4: Allowances for impairment

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Specific allowances for impairment
Balance at the end of Previous Year 178,098,430 130,477,891
Impairment loss for the year: (125,450,720) 111,081,392
Charge for the year (125,450,720) 111,081,392
Recoveries/reversal during the year -
Write-offs - -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -
Other movement - -
Balance at the end of This Year 52,647,710 241,559,283
Collective allowances for impairment
Balance at the end of Previous Year 63,460,853 -
Impairment loss for the year: 387,792,665 -
Charge/(reversal) for the year 387,792,665 -
Exchange rate variance on foreign currency impairment - -
Other movement - -
Balance at the end of This Year 451,253,518 -
Total allowances for impairment 503,901,227 241,559,283
4.8 Investment securities Amount in NPR

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Investment securities measured at amortized cost 421,514,326 1,294,508,353
Investment in equity measured at FVTOCI 202,012,046 298,386,210
Total 623,526,372 1,592,894,563
4.8.1: Investment securities measured at amortized cost

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Debt securities - -
Government bonds 421,514,326 421,514,326
Government treasury bills - 722,994,027
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds - -
Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments - 150,000,000
Other -
Less: specific allowances for impairment - -
Total 421,514,326 1,294,508,353
4.8.2: Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Equity instruments - -
Quoted equity securities 124,454,346 192,924,810
Ungquoted equity securities 77,557,700 105,461,400
Total 202,012,046 298,386,210
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4.8.3: Information relating to investment in equities Amount in NPR
. 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investment in quoted equity 61,649,100 124,454,346 160,330,000 192,924,810
National Micro Finance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. (Promoter) i )

25,000 shares of Rs. 100 each and 54,873 bonus shares

National Micro Finance Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. (Promoter) i 47.567.250 ) 45,952,345
70,470 bonus shares
Nepal Life Insurance Co. Ltd. i 776 ) 619
1 Bonus share

NIC Asia Balanced Fund

1.000,000 shares os Rs. 10 each 10,000,000 9,770,000 10,000,000 9,600,000
NMB Mutual Fund

1,000,000 shares of Rs.10 each ) i 10,000,000 10,040,000
Sanima Large Cap Fund

2,000,000 shares of Rs. 10 each ) i 20,000,000 18,580,000
Kumari Equity Fund 2,500,000 2,507,500 2,500,000 2,415,000
250,000 shares of Rs. 10 each e U T T
NIBSF2

2,000,000 shares of Rs. 10 each 20,000,000 17,640,000 20,000,000 16,500,000
PSF

1,468,090 shares of Rs. 10 each ) ) 14,680,900 14,372,601
SBCF

2,000,000 shares of Rs. 10 each . ) 20,000,000 16,540,000
Mega Mutual Fund 1

436340 Shares of Rs. 10 Each 4,363,400 4,180,137 4,363,400 3,368,545
Kumari Dhanbriddhi Yojana

200,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each ) ) 20,000,000 19,340,000
Laxmi Value Fund II

1,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each ) i 10,000,000 9,240,000
Himalayan Closed End MF H8020

1,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each ) ) 10,000,000 9,990,000
NIC Asia Growth Fund 2

1,000,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each 10,000,000 9,980,000 10,000,000 8,200,000
Kumari Sabal Yojana

150,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each 1,500,000 1,527,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Reliable Samriddhi Fund

500,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each 5,000,000 4,985,000 i )
General Insurance Company Limited (Promoter)

78321 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 7,285,700 25,297,683 7,285,700 7,285,700
MNMF 1 100,000 Shares of Rs. 10 Each 1,000,000 999,000

Investment in unquoted equity 54,316,200 717,557,700 87,816,200 105,461,400
Nepal Clearing House

161,723 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 2,025,200 16,172,300 2,025,200 10,576,000
Karja Suchana Kendra

98,854 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 791,000 9,885,400 791,000 9,885,400
Citizen Investment Trust

350,000 Shares of Rs 100 Each i ) 35,000,000 35,000,000
National Equity Fund-1

50,000 Shares of Rs 1000 Each 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000 50,000,000
National Banking Institute 15,000 Shares of Rs. 100 Each 1,500,000 1,500,000
Total 115,965,300 202,012,046 248,146,200 298,386,210
Investment in unquoted equity are shown at cost considering networth of invested equity are not less than cost.
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4.9 Current tax assets Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Current tax assets 109,694,088 71,934,115
Current year income tax assets 1,609,956 1,623,323
Tax assets of prior periods 71,934,115 73,507,928
Opening Tax asset adjustment 36,150,017 (3,197,136)
Current tax liabilities 61,015,539 55,510,185
Current year income tax liabilities 5,505,354 14,001,263
Tax liabilities of prior periods 55,510,185 41,508,922
Total 48,678,549 16,423,930
4.10 Investment in subsidiaries Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Investment in quoted subsidiaries - -
Investment in unquoted subsidiaries - -
Total investment - -
Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net carrying amount - -
4.10.1: Investment in quoted subsidiaries
32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total - - - -
4.10.2: Investment in unquoted subsidiaries Amount in NPR
. 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Particulars
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......ecach
........................................... Ltd. i i
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total - - - -
4.10.3: Information relating to subsidiaries of the Finance Amount in NPR

Particulars

Percentage of ownership held by the

Finance

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081
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4.10.4: Non controlling interest of the subsidiaries Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year
...Ltd ...Ltd ...Ltd ...Ltd
Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year -
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Ashadh end 2080 -
Dividend paid to NCI
Funds used -
NCI as on Ashadh end 2082 -
et Previous Year
...Ltd ...Ltd ...Ltd ...Ltd
Equity interest held by NCI (%)
Profit/(loss) allocated during the year -
Accumulated balances of NCI as on Ashadh end 2079 -
Dividend paid to NCI
Funds used -
NCI as on Ashadh end 2082 -
4.11 Investment in associates Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Investment in quoted associates - -
Investment in unquoted associates - -
Total investment o -
Less: Impairment allowances - -
Net carrying amount - -
4.11.1: Investment in quoted associates Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......each
Total
4.11.2: Investment in unquoted associates Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......ecach
........................................... Ltd.
............ shares of Rs. .......ecach
Total
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4.11.3: Information relating to associates of the Finance

Amount in NPR

Percentage of ownership held by the

Particulars Finance
32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
4.11.4: Equity value of associates
Particulars
........................................... Ltd.
........................................... Ltd.
Total
4.12 Investment properties Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Investment properties measured at fair value
Balance as on the end of Previous Year - -
Addition/disposal during the year- Net - -
Net changes in fair value during the year - -
Adjustment/transfer - -
Net amount - -
Investment properties measured at cost
Balance as on the end of Previous Year 280,124,526 213,306,661
Addition/disposal during the year (19,604,289) 66,817,865
Adjustment/transfer - -
Accumulated depreciation - -
Accumulated impairment loss - -
Net amount 260,520,237 280,124,526
Total 260,520,237 280,124,526

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the disposal groups) are

classified as Investment Properties and measured at cost.
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4.14 Goodwill and Intangible Assets Amount in NPR
Software Total Total
Particulars Goodwill | Purchased | Developed Other Ashad end | Ashad end
2082 2081
Cost
As on Shrawan 1, 2080 - 7,525,170 - - 7,525,170 6,178,837
Addition during the Year - 671,500 - - 671,500 1,346,333
Acquisition 671,500 671,500 1,346,333
Capitalization - - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - - -
Adjustment/Revaluation - - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2081 - 8,196,670 - - 8,196,670 7,525,170
Addition during the Year - 494,549 - - 494,549 671,500
Acquisition 494,549 494,549 671,500
Capitalization - - - - - -
Disposal during the year - - - - - -
Adjustment/Revluation - - - - -
Balance as on Ashadh end 2082 - 8,691,219 - - 8,691,219 8,196,670
Amortization and Impairment
As on Shrawan 1, 2080 - 3,468,698 - - 3,468,698 2,367,292
Amortization charge for the Year - 1,349,823 - - 1,349,823 1,101,406
Impairment for the year - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - - -
As on Ashadh end 2081 - 4,818,521 - - 4,818,521 3,468,698
Amortization charge for the Year - 1,483,937 - - 1,483,937 1,349,823
Impairment for the year - - - - - -
Disposals - - - - - -
Adjustment - - - - - -
As on Ashadh end 2082 - 6,302,458 - - 6,302,458 4,818,521
Capital Work in Progress - - - - - -
Net Book Value
As on Ashadh end 2080 - 4,056,472 - - 4,056,472
As on Ashadh end 2081 - 3,378,149 - - 3,378,149 3,378,149
As on Ashadh end 2082 - 2,388,761 - - 2,388,761 -

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring the specific software to
use. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that it will generate future economic
benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of estimated useful life. Costs associated with
maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.
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4.15 Deferred Taxes Assets/(Liabilities)
. Deferred Tax Deferred Tax As on Ashad 32, 2082
Particulars Assets Liabilities Net Deferred Tax
Assets /(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items - - -
Loans and Advances to BFIs - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 83,750,941 - 83,750,941
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - 25,814,024 (25,814,024)
Property and Equipment - 19,522,245 (19,522,245)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 333,479 - 333,479
Employees' Leave Liability 7,227,196 - 7,227,196
Lease Liabilities 23,627,763 - 23,627,763
Provisions 3,536,767 - 3,536,767
Intangible Assets 299,334 299,334
Other Temporary Differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 118,775,480 45,336,269 73,439,212
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2081/82 73,439,212
Recognized in Profit of Loss 91,188,360
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (18,820,775)
Recognized directly in equity 1,071,626
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2081 - 28,320,689
Adjustment 23,670,848
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2081, Restated 4,649,842
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (68,789,370)
Deferred Tax (expense)/ income recognized in profit or loss 79,531,391
Deferred Tax (expense)/ income recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (8,768,531)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized directly in equity (1,973,490)
. Deferred Tax Deferred Tax As on Ashad 31, 2081
Particulars Assets Liabilities Net Deferred Tax
Assets /(Liabilities)
Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items
Loans and Advances to BFIs - - -
Loans and Advances to Customers 31,498,032 - 31,498,032
Investment Properties - - -
Investment Securities - 15,072,003 (15,072,003)
Property and Equipment - 21,807,330 (21,807,330)
Employees' Defined Benefit Plan 6,440,070 - 6,440,070
Employees' Leave Liability - - -
Lease Liabilities 23,725,153 - 23,725,153
Provisions 3,536,767 - 3,536,767
Intangible Assets - - -
Other Temporary Differences - - -
Deferred tax on temporary differences 65,200,022 36,879,333 28,320,689.00
Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses - -
Deferred tax due to changes in tax rate - - -
Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liabilities) as on year end of 2080/81 28,320,689.00
Recognized in Profit of Loss 35,327,817
Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (10,052,244)
Recognized directly in equity 3,045,116
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) as on Shrawan, 2081 (11,117,713)
Adjustment (18,253,176)
Deferred Tax Asset/ (Liabilities) as on Shrawan, 2081, Restated (29,370,889)
Origination/(Reversal) during the year (57,691,578)
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in profit or loss 51,537,379
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized in Other Comprehensive Income 3,109,083
Deferred Tax (expense)/income recognized directly in equity 3,045,116
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4.16 Other assets Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Assets held for sale - -
Other non banking assets - -
Bills receivable - -
Accounts receivable 141,752 116,372
Accrued income 2,702,158
Prepayments and deposit 9,224,277 7,504,594
Income tax deposit 6,923,456 6,923,456
Deferred employee expenditure 1,264,047 1,249,881
Other 21,874,595 18,095,664
Stationary Stock 1,077,887 1,010,964
Receivable Insurance 351,541 265,835
Bank 1 day interest receivable - -
Unwinding of Interest 696,446 742,988
Gratuity Surplus - -
Debit Card Stock 251,538 283,630
Plan Assets-Net 519,068
Other 18,978,115 15,792,247
Total 39,428,127 36,592,125
4.17 Due to Bank and Financial Institutions Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Money market deposits - -
Interbank borrowing - -
Settlement and clearing accounts - -
Other deposits from BFIs 40,852,477 24,669,231
Total 40,852,477 24,669,231

The balances in accounts maintained with the Bank by other local financial institutions have been presented under this head.
Interbank borrowing, interbank deposit, balances on settlement and clearing accounts as well as other amount due to bank and

financial institution are also presented under this head.

4.18 Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

Amount in NPR

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Refinance from NRB

Standing Liquidity Facility

Lender of last report facility from NRB

Securities sold under repurchase agreements

Other payable to NRB

Total

The amount payable to NRB shall include amount of refinance facilities, standing liquidity facility, lender of last resort, sale

and repurchase agreements, deposit from NRB etc.

4.19 Derivative financial instruments

Amount in NPR

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Held for trading

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

Others

Held for risk management

Interest rate swap

Currency swap

Forward exchange contract

Other

Total
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4.20 Deposits from customers Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081

Institutions customers:
Term deposits 641,325,465 592,365,576
Call deposits 228,249,873 184,536,381
Current deposits 79,361,873 55,340,405
Other 66,074,251 54,094,895

Individual customers:

Term deposits

3,063,302,500

3,425,957,864

Saving deposits

1,579,943,096

1,090,627,416

Current deposits

55,111,992

32,243,733

Other

Total

5,713,369,050

5,435,166,270

4.20.1: Currency wise analysis of deposit from customers

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Nepalese rupee

5,713,369,050

5,435,166,270

Indian rupee

United State dollar

Great Britain pound

Euro

Japenese yen

Chinese yuan

Other

Total

5,713,369,050

5,435,166,270

4.21 Borrowing

Amount in NPR

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Domestic Borrowing

Nepal Government

Other Institutions

Other

Foreign Borrowing

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions

Multilateral Development Banks

Other Institutions

Total

4.22 Provisions

Amount in NPR

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Provisions for redundancy

Provision for restructuring

Pending legal issues and tax litigation

Onerous contracts

Other

4.22.1: Movement in provision

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Balance at Shrawan 1, 2081

Provisions made during the year

Provisions used during the year

Provisions reversed during the year

Unwind of discount

Balance at Ashadh end, 2082
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4.23 Other liabilities Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Liability for employees defined benefit obligations - 3,774,505
Liability for long-service leave 24,090,654 17,692,396
Short-term employee benefits - -
Bills payable - -
Creditors and accruals 10,355,948 46,759,200
Interest payable on deposit 1,808,994 3,511,667
Interest payable on borrowing - refinance - -
Liabilities on defered grant income - -
Unpaid Dividend 594,563 594,563
Liabilities under Finance Lease 78,759,209 79,083,843
Employee bonus payable - -
Other 60,414,735 48,015,467
TDS Payable 4,639,607 5,187,295
Interest TDS 3,563,519 4,232,102
Salary TDS 696,688 492,569
Other TDS 379,400 462,624
Others 55,775,128 42,828,172
Total 176,024,103 199,431,641
4.23.1: Defined benefit obligations
The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:
Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Present value of unfunded obligations - -
Present value of funded obligations - -
Total present value of obligations - -
Fair value of plan assets - -
Present value of net obligations - -
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligations 1,111,597 44,482,811
4.23.2: Plan assets Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Plan assets comprise
Equity securities - -
Government bonds - -
Bank deposit - -
Other(Deposit at CIT) 1,630,665 40,708,304
Total 1,630,665 40,708,304
Actual return on plan assets
4.23.3: Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Defined benefit obligations at Shrawan 1, 2081 44,482,809 43,468,861
Actuarial losses - (4,129,517)
Benefits paid by the plan (41,767,467) (2,331,394)
Current service costs and interest (1,603,745) 7,474,861
Defined benefit obligations at Ashadh end, 2082 1,111,597 44,482,811
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4.23.4: Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Fair value of plan assets at Shrawan 1, 2081 40,708,304 36,835,415
Contributions paid into the plan 2,966,735
Benefits paid during the year (41,767,467) (2,331,394)
Actuarial (losses) gains - (445,994)
Expected return on plan assets 2,689,828 3,683,542
Fair value of plan assets at Ashadh end, 2082 1,630,665 40,708,304
4.23.5: Amount recognised in profit or loss

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Current service costs - -
Interest on obligation - -
Acturial (gain)/loss - -
Expected return on plan assets - -
Total - -
4.23.6: Amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Acturial (gain)/loss - (3,683,523)
Total - (3,683,523)
4.23.7: Actuarial assumptions Amount in NPR

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Discount rate 8.00% 8.00%
Expected return on plan asset 0.00% 8.00%
Future salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate 10.00% 10.00%
4.24 Debt securities issued Amount in NPR

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Debt securities issued designated as at fair value through profit or loss - -
Debt securities issued at amortised cost - -
Total - -
4.25 Subordinated Liabilities Amount in NPR

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Redeemable preference shares - -
Irredemable cumulative preference shares (liabilities component) - -
Other - -
Total - -
4.26 Share capital Amount in NPR

Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Ordinary shares 890,424,236 854,816,779
Convertible preference shares (equity component only) - -
Irredemable preference shares (equity component only) - -
Perpetual debt (equity component only) - -
Total 890,424,236 854,816,779

-73- 2Q 3if affep ufdidgat 20Ta/cR




I == BEST FINANCE COMPANY LTD.
= I BISollod BHIUat .

BFC

4.26.1: Ordinary shares

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Authorized Capital
10,000,000 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

Issued capital

8,905,242.37 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 890,524,237 890,524,237
Subscribed and paid up capital
8,904,242 .36 Ordinary Share of Rs. 100 each 890,424,236 854,816,779
Total 890,424,236 854,816,779
4.26.2: Ordinary share ownership
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
1eu Percent Percent
Domestic ownership 100% 100%
Nepal Government - -
"A" class licensed institutions - -
Other licensed intitutions - -
Other Institutions (Promoters) - -
Public 48.58% 40.18%
Other (Promoters) 51.42% 59.82%
Foreign ownership - -
Total 100% 100%
Note: Shareholders holding 0.5% or more Shares
SN Name of Shareholder No. of Shares %
1 Rajendra Kumar Sharma 908,833 10.21%
2 Robinda Prasad Shrestha 742,352 8.34%
3 Laxmi Shrestha 174,188 1.96%
4 Indra Lal Shrestha 167,902 1.89%
5 Bandana Sapkota 148,096 1.66%
6 Ramvha Shrestha 138,309 1.55%
7 Yubaraj Sharma 134,294 1.51%
8 Devendra Prasad Dhoju 189,842 2.13%
9 Arbind Tulachan 121,991 1.37%
10 Milan Thapa 121,865 1.37%
11 Bindu Gaire Sharma 121,751 1.37%
12 Rajendra Prasad Dhoju 265,410 2.98%
13 Harendra Thagunna 92,500 1.04%
14 Bijula Thapa Khadka 80,510 0.90%
15 Durga Vohra 71,210 0.80%
16 Gauri Shrestha 63,267 0.71%
17 Amulya Manandhar 49,359 0.55%
18 Kusum Pun 48,613 0.55%
19 Bishnu Bahadur K.C. 47,160 0.53%
Total 3,687,452 41.42%
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4.27 Reserves Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Statutory general reserve 241,035,509 241,035,509
Exchange equilisation reserve - -
Corporate social responsibility reserve 1,003,324 1,289,214
Capital Redemption Reserve - -
Regulatory reserve 284,777,519 287,277,529
Investment adjustment reserve - -
Capital reserve 3,628,619 3,628,619
Assets revaluation reserve - -
Fair value reserve 60,232,722 35,168,007
Dividend equalisation reserve - -
Debenture redemption reserve -
Actuarial gain - (2,685,530)
Special reserve - -
Other reserve-Employee Skill Fund 895,184 736,493
Total 591,572,877 566,449,841
4.28 Contingent liabilities and commitments Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Contingent liabilities 150,000 150,000
Undrawn and undisbursed facilities 142,463,929 152,489,817
Capital commitment - -
Lease Commitment - -
Litigation 26,910,743 26,910,743
Total 169,524,672 179,550,560
4.28.1: Contingent liabilities Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Acceptance and documentary credit - -
Bills for collection - -
Forward exchange contracts - -
Guarantees 150,000 150,000
Underwriting commitment - -
Other commitments - -
Total 150,000 150,000
4.28.2: Undrawn and undisbursed facilities Amount in NPR
Particulars 32 Ashad 2082 31 Ashad 2081
Undisbursed amount of loans - -
Undrawn limits of overdrafts 142,463,929 152,489,817
Undrawn limits of credit cards - -
Undrawn limits of letter of credit - -
Undrawn limits of guarantee - -
Total 142,463,929 152,489,817
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4.28.3: Capital commitments

Amount in NPR

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets

Approved and contracted for

Approved but not contracted for

Sub total

Total

4.28.4: Lease commitments

Amount in NPR

Particulars

32 Ashad 2082

31 Ashad 2081

Operating lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease,
where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Finance lease commitments

Future minimum lease payments under non cancellable operating lease,
where the bank is lessee

Not later than 1 year

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Later than 5 years

Sub total

Grand total

4.28.5: Litigation

The bank's litigations are generally related to its ordinary course of business pending on various jurisdiction. Litigations are
mainly in the nature of income tax. Other litigations include cases pending in various courts & tribunal in Nepal pertaining to

assets recovered from the borrowers.
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4.29 Interest income Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Cash and cash equivalent 2,801,804 8,888,375
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 14,208,845 49,315
Placement with bank and financial institutions - 150,795
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions 2,327,266 2,168,147
Loans and advances to customers 496,409,516 523,519,053
Investment securities 36,018,673 52,222,020
Loan and advances to staff 3,545,421 5,924,275
Other 5,538,713 8,694,199
Total interest income 560,850,238 601,616,179
4.30 Interest expense Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Due to bank and financial institutions 4,313,489 6,174,193
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - -
Deposits from customers 414,059,356 468,527,692
Borrowing - -
Debt securities issued - -
Subordinated liabilities - -
Other 7,943,866 5,654,227
Total interest expense 426,316,711 480,356,112
4.31 Fees and Commission Income Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loan administration fees - -
Service fees 20,604,571 20,649,413
Consortium fees - -
Commitment fees 2,227 -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Credit card/ATM issuance and renewal fees 181,800 120,750
Renewal fees - -
Prepayment and swap fees - -
Investment banking fees - -
Asset management fees - -
Brokerage fees - -
Remittance fees - -
Commission on letter of credit - -
Commission on guarantee contracts issued - -
Commission on share underwriting/issue - -
Locker rental 112,000 96,000
Other fees and commission income 5,789,336 4,887,185
Total fees and Commission Income 26,689,934 25,753,348
4.32 Fees and commission expense Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
ATM management fees 405,752 413,309
VISA/Master card fees - -
Guarantee commission - -
Brokerage - -
DD/TT/Swift fees - -
Remittance fees and commission - -
Other fees and commission expense - -
Total fees and Commission Expense 405,752 413,309
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4.33 Net trading income

Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Changes in fair value of trading assets - -
Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets - -
Interest income on trading assets - -
Dividend income on trading assets - -
Gain/loss on foreign exchange transaction - -
Other - -
Net trading income - -
4.34 Other operating income Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Foreign exchange revauation gain - -
Gain/loss on sale of investment securities 8,026,883 -
Fair value gain/loss on investment properties - -
Dividend on equity instruments 8,019,718 7,975,594
Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment (2,168,560) 1,136,993
Gain/loss on sale of investment property 11,125,039 991,619
Operating lease income 5,195,262 -
Gain/loss on sale of gold and silver - -
Locker rent - -
Other 16,069,095 7,825,779
Total 46,267,437 17,929,985
4.35 Impairment charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs (240,000) (85,000)
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer 262,341,944 111,081,392
Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial investment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with banks and financial institutions - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets - -
Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties -
Total 262,101,944 110,996,392
4.36 Personnel expenses Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Salary 47,751,477 41,572,117
Allowances 32,086,323 28,040,499
Gratuity expense 2,170,760 7,474,859
Provident fund 787,947 4,145,771
Uniform 1,926,350 1,919,350
Training & development expense 2,703,803 2,443,065
Leave encashment 12,714,174 5,504,243
Medical 4,271,698 3,300,255
Insurance - -
Employees incentive - -
Cash-settled share-based payments - -
Pension expense - -
Finance expense under NFRS
Other expenses related to staff/SSF 7,912,561 1,016,323
Subtotal 112,325,093 95,416,482
Employees bonus - -
Grand total 112,325,093 95,416,482
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4.37 Other operating expenses Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Directors' fee 1,166,000 350,500
Directors' expense 518,120 316,596
Auditors' remuneration 1,050,353 901,740
Other audit related expense 888,764 651,477
Professional and legal expense 1,037,178 966,114
Office administration expense 49,041,380 46,464,612
Operating lease expense - -
Operating expense of investment properties - -
Corporate social responsibility expense 285,890
Onerous lease provisions - -
Other - -

Share Issue Expenses

Others - -
Total 53,987,685 49,651,039
4.37.1 Office administration expense Amount in NPR

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Water and electricity 3,890,801 4,157,684
Repair and Maintenance 1,980,091 2,346,042
(a) Building 648,830 833,937
(b) Vehicle 470,212 903,909
(c) Computer and accessories 133,118 65,100
(d) Office euipment and furniture 562,924 389,640
(e) Other 165,007 153,456
Insurance 798,354 854,277
Postage, Telephone, Internet and Email 2,803,070 3,074,675
Printing & Stationery 1,703,972 2,201,382
Newspaper & Periodicals 58,043 51,625
Advertisements 738,561 1,009,583
Donation - -
Security Expense 9,945,498 9,637,855
Deposit and Loan guarantee premium 2,807,757 2,510,236
Travel Allowance and Expense 1,668,781 2,215,354
Fuel Expenses 1,447,582 1,645,778
Entertainment - -
Annual/Special General Meeting expense 660,781 -
Other 20,538,089 16,760,121
(a) Office Expenses 7,782,028 6,645,072
(b) Technical Service Fees 5,219,269 3,771,469
(c) Other Fees & taxes 5,930,759 1,766,267
(d) Miscelleneous Expenses 478,219 676,827
(e) Membership Fee 609,303 525,198
(f) Branch Opening/Relocation Expenses - 143,152
(g) Income Tax Expenses 385,511 3,197,136
(h) Share Auction - 35,000
(1) Green Saving Deposit Promotional Expenses 133,000
Total 49,041,380 46,464,612
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4.38 Depreciation & Amortisation Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Depreciation on property and equipment 23,595,285 26,197,205
Depreciation on investment property - -
Amortisation of intangible assets 1,483,937 1,349,823
Total 25,079,222 27,547,028
4.39 Non operating income Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Recovery of loan written off 14,635,251 10,258,078
Other income 3,774,505 -
Total 18,409,756 10,258,078
4.40 Non operating expense Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Loan written off 2,592,760 29,327,844
Redundancy provision - -
Expense of restructuring - -
Other expense - -
Total 2,592,760 29,327,844
4.41 Income tax expense Amount in NPR
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Current tax expense 5,505,354 14,001,263
Current year 5,505,354 14,001,263
Adjustments for prior years - -
Deferred tax expense (79,531,391) (51,537,379)

Origination and reversal of temporary differences

(79,531,391)

(51,537,379)

Changes in tax rate

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses

Total income tax expense

(74,026,037)

(37,536,116)

The amount of income tax on net taxable profit is recognized and presented under this account head. This account head includes
current tax expense and deferred tax expense/deferred tax income.

4.41.1: Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit

Amount in NPR

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Profit before tax

(230,591,802)

(138,150,616)

Tax amount

(69,177,541)

(41,445,185)

Add: Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for tax purpose (84,379,887) 52,828,360
Less: Tax effect on exempt income

Add/less: Tax effect on other items 79,531,391 -
Total income tax expense (74,026,037) 11,383,175
Effective tax rate 32.10% -8.24%
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Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY 2081/82 Rs. in '000'
As per As per Variance
Statement of Financial Position l;:::::ltlzcll lé?::;‘:;gl In amount In % Reasons for Variance
Statement Statement
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 232,057 232,057 0 0%
gﬁ; §§1‘§ NRB and placements 231,642 | 1,432,613 | (1,200971)| -518% | Reclassification of SDF/DC
Loan and advances 4,102,615 3,860,650 241,965 6% | Staff Loan Reversal/ LLP
Investments Securities 1,824,497 623,526 1,200,971 66% | Reclassification of SDF/DC
Inves.tment in subsidiaries and ) ) 0%
associates
Property and Equipment 293,873 295,028 (1,155) 0% i‘juinlﬂz‘t’;gg:giﬁtfn
Goodwill and intangible assets 2,389 2,389 0 0%
Other assets 356,388 422066|  (65678)|  -18% i;‘;‘::t tax / Deferred tax
Total Assets 7,043,461 6,868,329 175,132 2%
Capital and Liabilities
Paid up Capital 890,424 890,424 (0) 0%
Reserves and surplus 223,006 47,660 175,346 79% f}iiﬁigfﬁggﬂ Earning
Deposits 5,754,222 5,754,222 0 0%
Borrowings - - - 0%
Bond and Debenture - - - 0%
Other liabilities and provisions 175,809 176,024 (215) 0% | Lease Liability/staff bonus
Total Capital and Liabilities 7,043,461 6,868,329 175,132 2%
Statement of Profit or Loss
Interest income 563,757 560,850 2,907 1% ﬁiﬁ:’ﬁ;ﬂﬁ%iﬁem in ECL
Interest expense 423,929)| (426,317 2,388 1% Igzggzle‘;“ of Lease Interest
Net interest income 139,828 134,534 5,294 4%
Fee and commission income 26,690 26,690 0 0%
Fee and commission expense (4006) (4006) (0) 0%
Net fee and commission income 26,284 26,284 (U] 0%
Other operating income 38,241 46,267 (8,026) -21% | Gain on sale of investment
Total operating income 204,353 207,085 (2,732) -1%
{(ﬂﬁ‘:ﬁﬁﬁgj‘ﬁg S:V"rsal) for 20,286 262,102 |  (241,816)| -1192% | Provision
Net operating income 184,067 (55,017) 239,084 130%
Personnel expenses 113,251 112,325 926 1% E)erllus’ Actuary valuation, Staff
Other operating expenses 79,890 79,067 823 1% Revisiqn (.)f Lease .
Depreciation/Prepaid reversal
Operating profit 9,074) (246,409) 237,335 | -2616%
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. Writeback on Settlement of
210
Non operating income/expense 12,042 15,817 (3,775) 31% Defined Benefit Plan
Profit before tax 2,968 (230,592) 233,560 7869%
Cumulative tax effect of
0,
Income tax (890) 74,026 (74,916) 8418% different adjustments
Gain on sale of
. o, | investment/writeback on
Profit /(loss) for the period 2,078 (156,566) 158,644 7634% Settlement of Defined Benefit
Plan/Provision
Other comprehensive income 25,065 20,460 4,605 18% Deferred Tax Adjustment on
items of OCI
Total comprehensive income 27,143 (136,106) 163,249 601%
Distributable Profit
Opening Retained Earnings (398,486) (398,486) - 0%
Opening Adjustments 11,663 2,827 8,836 76% | DTA adjustment
Gain on sale of
o, | Investment/writeback on
Net profit/(loss) as per profit or loss 2,078 (156,566) 158,644 7634% Settlement of Defined Benefit
Plan
) . Adjustment of GR, actuary
‘:deé ?I?EBRS*?;I:&? adjustment 82,685 (6,637) 89,322 |  108% | loss/Changes in Fair value of
p Share Investment
Frf:e profit/(loss) after regulatory (302,060) (558,861) 256,801 -85% Cumulatwe effects of NFRS
adjustments Adjustments

2Q 3 aiffed Ufddgal 20Ta/T

—82-—




I == BEST FINANCE COMPANY LTD.
= I HISollod BHaUai fod.

BFC

5. Disclosures and Additional Information

5.1.

Risk Management
Introduction and Overview

In Compliance with Nepal Rastra Bank Directive on 6 "Corporate Governance", the Board of Company has
established a Risk Management Committee with clear terms of reference. As at the date of this report, the Risk
Management Committee comprised of following:

S. No Member of Risk Management Committee Designation

1 Mr. Bishnu Prasad Gyawali Coordinator

2 Mr. Prem Sagar Napit Member

3 Mr. Rajeev Kumar Yadav Member secretary

The Committees meet at least four times annually. The committee oversees and reviews the fundamental prudential
risks.

Risk is inherent in the Company's activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Company's
continuing profitability and each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his
or her responsibilities.

Stress Testing

Stress Testing is a valuable risk management tool which tries to quantify the size of potential losses under certain
stress events. A stress event is an exceptional but credible event to which a bank’s portfolio is exposed. As a part of
its risk measurement mechanism, the Bank puts an emphasis on evaluating where the Bank stands under stressful
market conditions. It helps to provide information on the kinds of conditions under which strategies or position, the
Bank would be most vulnerable and thus, strategies are devised such that such circumstance doesn’t arise and/or to
ensure least impact upon the Bank from such scenarios even if they do occur.

Governance Framework
Risk Management Committee of the Company has formed to review the credit risk, Market risk, and liquidity risk
of the institution.

The Company’s risk management framework is established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the institution
to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Through it, the Company
seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity risks which arise directly through the Institution’s
commercial activities as well as operational, regulatory and reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence
of any business undertaking. As part of this framework, the institution uses a set of principles that describes its
risk management culture. The institution, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims
to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.

The Major risk area and mitigation mechanism is as given below.

5.1.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principle and reward associated with it due to failure of counterparty
to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Company in accordance with agreed terms. Credit Risk
Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors. Hence overall strategy as well as
significant policies must be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior Management is responsible for
implementing the Company’s credit risk management strategies and policies and ensuring that procedures
are put in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality of credit portfolio in accordance with these
policies.

5.1.2 Market Risk

The Company’s foreign exchange risk stems from foreign exchange position taking and commercial dealing.
All foreign exchange positions are managed by the Treasury. Fluctuation in foreign exchange rates can have
a significant impact on a Company's financial position. The Company has adopted measures to appropriately
hedge the risks that arise while carrying out international trade transactions. Code of ethics for treasury
dealers is in place to ensure that professionalism and confidentiality are maintained, and ethical dealing
practices observed. The Company treasury dealers have gained exposure to international markets as well in
addition to having undergone appropriate trainings.
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5.1.3 Liquidity Risk
The Company has set internal risk appetite in terms of managing its liquidity risk. Adequate cushion is
maintained in terms of liquidity. Asset-liability management is also a part of the Treasury functions and it
guided by the Company’s Asset Liability Management policy. This is further reviewed by the Company’s
ALCO and Risk Management Committee.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on an undiscounted cash flow
basis which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when liquidity outgo
arises taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the business.

Figure in NPR ‘000

Particulars 1-90 Days  91-180 Days 181-365 Days Over 1 Year Total
Total Assets 3,230,618 400,855 539,608 3,930,091 8,101,172
T(.>ta1. iy 1,256,734 816,157 1,417,530 2,151,646 5,642,067
Liabilities

5.1.4 Operational Risk
Operational risk is inherent in all business activities. Whilst risks can never be eliminated, at Best Finance
we follow several procedures and practices like Business Continuity Plan, Whistle Blowing — A Culture of
Speaking Up to manage and mitigate preserve and create value of our business.

We manage our operational risks through standardization of internal processes and monitoring mechanisms.
Data security, dual control, periodic departmental reviews and quality assessment are some of the tools that
are used to manage risks.

Critical risk areas are discussed at the management level as well as Risk Management Committee which
updates issues with priority to the Company’s Board to necessary actions and strategic directions.

Compliance and Assurance / Operations Risk Unit

Recognizing the importance of Operations Risk in terms of managing day-to-day business, we have a full-
fledged Operational Risk under the Risk Management Unit.

5.2. Capital Management

The capital management approach of the company is driven by its desire to maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of its business and to meet the regulatory capital requirements at all times.

As Capital is the centerpiece of the company’s performance matrix, a sound capital management forms the very
core of the overall performance landscape to ensure that the company delivers on its objective of maximizing
the shareholder’s value. The senior management of the company is engaged and responsible for prudent capital
management at all times. In compliance with the regulatory requirement of increasing the capital base as prescribed
by the Central Bank, the company is comfortable in meeting the minimum capital requirements and is strongly
positioned to meet the performance benchmarks.

5.2.1 Qualitative disclosures
The Board shall be primarily responsible for ensuring the current and future capital needs of the Company in
relation to strategic objectives. The management shall review and understand the nature and level of various
risks that the Company is confronting during different business activities and how this risk relates to capital
levels and accordingly implement sound risk management framework specifying control measures to tackle
each risk factor.
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5.2.2 Quantitative disclosures
a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy
i. Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components
Amount in (NPR '000)
S.N. Particulars Amount

a Paid up Capital 890,424

b Share Premium / Capital Reserve 14,948

c Proposed Bonus Shares -

d Statutory General Reserve 241,036

e Retained Earnings (558,861)

f | Un-audited Current Year Cumulative Profit -

g Capital Adjustment Reserve 3,629

h Other Free Reserves -

Less: Deferred Tax Assets -

—

j Less: Intangible Assets -
k Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests -
L. Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits 50,000
m. | Less: Other Deductions 27,735

Core (Tier-1) Capital 513,440

ii. Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components
Amount in (NPR “000)

Particulars Amount

S.N.

Subordinated Term Debt
General Loan Loss Provision 52,648
Exchange Equalization Reserve
Investment Adjustment Reserve
. Accrued Interest Receivable on pass loan included in Regulatory 2342

Reserve ’
Interest Capitalized Reserve included in Regulatory Reserve 641

Other Reserve

Q—OU‘NZ

(Ol s}

Supplementary (Tier-2) Capital 61,631

iii. Total qualifying capital

S. N. Particulars Amount (NPR °000)
A Core Capital 513,440
B Supplementary Capital 61,631

Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 575,071

v. Capital Adequacy Ratio
Capital Adequacy Ratio of the Company as per Basel II as on Ashad 2082 is 9.23% & 10.34% of
Core Capital Fund and Total Capital Fund respectively.

vi. Summary of Company’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support
current and future activities, if applicable
The Company formulates an annual business plan, with prescribed plan for every business function
including deposits, lending, product developments and customer service. These plans are made in
consideration of the competitive environment and business sustainability as well as overall risk
inherent in banking business.

Capital Plan is a part of the Company’s business plan. Capital Plan is formulated to fund the planned
business growth and to meet regulatory requirements on minimum capital and capital adequacy.

- 85— 2Q 3 a1ffed Ufddgal 20Ta/TR



I == BEST FINANCE COMPANY LTD.
= I BISollod BHIUat .

BFC

Result of the scenario-based approach is used as input to the capital contingency plan. The financial
consequences following various scenarios and potential events/actions are estimated and adequacy
of capital in those scenarios is tested. The results are discussed broadly at senior management level
and in board meetings.

vii. Summary of the terms, conditions, and main features of all capital instruments, especially in
case of subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments
Ordinary share capital: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of
NPR 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of
liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets
of the Company after distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to
the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

b) Risk Exposures
i.  Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk
Amount in NPR '000

S.N. Risk Weighted Exposure Amount
a Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 5,133,125
Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 272,399
c Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk
Total Risk Weighted Exposure 5,405,524
- - : 5
SRP 6.4a (7) Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3 % of 49,483
gross income.
Overall risk management policies and procedures are not
SRP 642 (9) satisfactory. Add 3% of RWE 108,110
Desired level of disclosure requirement has not been achieved.
SRP 642 (10) | A 4d 19 of RWE ]
Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Company’s adjustments of Pillar II) 5,563,117

ii. Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 11 categories of Credit Risk
Amount in NPR '000

S.N. Risk Classification RWE
a Claims on Govt. and Central Bank -
b Claims on other Financial Entities -
c Claims on Banks 39,279
d Claims on Corporate and Securities Firm 488,313
e Claims on Regulatory Retail Portfolio 400,100
f Claims secured by Residential Properties 419,528
g Claims secured by Commercial Real Estate -
h Past due Claims 391,355
i High Risk Claims 1,783,553
J Other Assets 1,559,642
K Off balance sheet items 51,355

Total 5,133,125
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d) Amount of NPAs (Both Gross and Net)

Current Year
Particulars
Gross NPAs Net NPAs
Restructured / Reschedule Loans - -
Sub Standard Loans 117,009,314 88,388,127
Doubtful Loans 135,072,096 68,313,061
Loss 361,972,858 6,099,562
Total NPAs 614,054,268 162,800,750

5.3. Operating Segment Information

5.3.1 General Information

The Company has identified its segments on the basis of its geographical business presence in seven provinces of the country.
Information about profit or loss, assets, and liabilities

Amount in NPR full figure

Particulars Province 1| Madhesh Bagmati Gandaki Lumbini Total

Revenues from external customers 41,059,576 11,158,678 337,035,683 34,360,659 137,235,640| 560,850,238
Intersegment revenues - - - - - -
Net revenues 41,059,576 11,158,678 | 337,035,683 34,360,659 137,235,640| 560,850,238
Interest revenue (a) 41,059,576 11,158,678 337,035,683 34,360,659 137,235,640| 560,850,238
Interest expense (b) 5,302,201 6,973,048 209,444,661 48,518,463 | 156,078,337 426,316,711
Net interest revenue (a-b) 35,757,376| 4,185,630 127,591,021 (14,157,804)( (18,842,697)| 134,533,527
Depreciation and amortization 1,416,228 1,311,238 13,370,145 2,930,701 6,050,910 25,079,222
Segment profit / (loss) before tax 43,819,740 (1,187,724)| (151,130,727)| (29,195,079) (92,898,030)|(230,591,802)
Impairment of assets 9,252,557 1,910,207 381,266,334 10,676,689 | 100,795,437| 503,901,227
Segment assets 346,278,035(152,254,443 | 4,632,183,122| 342,394,355 1,395,219,4576,868,329,413
Segment liabilities 94,646,559 | 93,746,900| 4,074,211,889| 543,730,167 2,061,993,8996,868,329,413

5.3.2 Reconciliation of reportable, segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Revenue

Total revenue for reportable segments 560,850,238
Other revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity's revenue 560,850,238
Profit or Loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments (230,591,802)
Other profit or loss

Elimination of intersegment profits

Profit before income tax (230,591,802)
Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 6,868,329,413
Other assets

Total assets 6,868,329,413
Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 6,868,329,413
Other liabilities

Total liabilities 6,868,329,413
QQ 3k arffes ufdfdgar 20Ta/TR -90 -
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5.3.3 Information about product and services

534

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

The Company offers different ranges of banking products and services across all operating segments. All branches in each
segment are equipped to provide services of each type to customers through themselves or through other branches/ central
units under same or different segment. However, some branches may be operated to provide specialized banking service
based on management’s assessment of the market niche.

Information about geographical areas
The operating segments identified above are based on geographical presence of the branches in seven provinces of the

country.

Domestic Revenue
A | Province 1 41,059,576
Madhesh 11,158,678
Bagmati 337,035,683
Gandaki 34,360,659
Lumbini 137,235,640
Karnali -
Mahakali -
B | Foreign
Total 560,850,238

Information about major customers
Revenue from single external customer does not exceed 10% or more of entity's revenue.

Share options and share based payment
There is no share-based payment made by the Company.

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment

Contingent Liabilities

The company has tax litigation of NPR 19,987,287 and liabilities for guarantee issued of NPR 150,000 is also accounted
under this head as presented in schedule 4.28.

Commitments:
The company has undrawn limit of overdraft amounting NPR 142,463,929.

Related Party Disclosures

The Company identifies its Board of Directors, Key Management Personnel comprising of the CEO and other executive
officials and its Subsidiary Companies as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24. The related parties of the
Company are listed below:

Particulars Relationship
Ramji Gautam Director
Khim Lal Paudyal Director
Ram Chandra Devkota Director
Sushila Khanal Director
Ram Lal Shrestha Director
Bishnu Prasad Gyawali Director
Bauddha Raj Aryal Director
Bal Narsingh Gharti Chief Executive Officer
Umesh Singh Bhandari* Former Chief Executive Officer
Shailendra Bade Shrestha Other Key Management Personnel

* Chief Executive officer, Mr. Umesh Singh Bhandari has departed from Best Finance effective from 2081.09.01 and
Mr. Bal Narsingh Gharti has been appointed as Chief Executive Officer from 2081.11.26.
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5.7. Board Member Allowances and Facilities
All members of the Board of Directors are non-executive directors, and no executive compensation is paid to the directors.
The directors are paid Meeting Fees for their attendance in meeting of the Board of Directors and other Board Level
Committees. The Chairman of the Board of Directors is paid NPR 5,500 per meeting attended while other members of the
board receive NPR 5,000 per meeting attended effective from 2081.09.28. In addition, the directors are reimbursed with
Magazine and Article expenses of NPR 2,500 per month effective from 2081.09.28.
The details of the compensations paid to the directors are as under:
Amount in NPR Full Figure
Particulars This Year (NPR) Previous Year (NPR)
Board Meeting Fee 932,500 266,500
Audit Committee Fee 39,000 21,000
Risk Management Committee fee 46,000 28,000
Money Laundering Prevention Committee 38,000 28,000
Human Resource Committee Fee 35,500 7,000
Other Committee 75,000 -
Other Board expenses 518,120 316,596
Total 1,684,120 667,096
5.7.1 Compensation Details for Key Management Personnel
Compensations paid to Key Management Personnel (which includes CEO and other executive officials) during the fiscal
year is presented below. In addition, other non-monetary perquisites are provided to the Key Management Personnel as
per the Company’s Human Resource Policy and employment terms and conditions.
Amount in NPR 000
Particulars This Year Previous Year
(NPR “000) (NPR ¢000)
Salary and Allowances
CEO 6,398 5,578
Other Key Management Personnel 2,404 2,070
Total 8,802 7,648
Other Benefits*
CEO - 82
Other Key Management Personnel - 31
Total - 113
Post-Employment Benefits** - -
*Other Benefits include Staff Bonus paid out of profit for previous year.
**Post-employment benefits are actuarially determined on overall basis for all employees
5.8. Loans and Advances extended to Promoters:
The Company has not extended any loans to promoters during the year.
5.9. Events after reporting date

The Company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and/or non-adjusting
events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books with additional disclosures and
non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 16 July 2025 till the signing of this financial statement.
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5.10. Investment Property (Non-Banking Assets)
Non-Banking Assets (NBA) has been shown under investment property. It has been recognized at lower of fair value of
collateral or amount due at the time of assuming of NBA. During the year new NBA of NPR. 65,798,886 has been booked.
NPR. 85,403,174 of NBA was sold during the period.

Amount in NPR Full Figure

Borrower Name Date of assuming NBA 32 Ashadh 2082 31 Ashadh 2081
Usha Shrestha 2069.02.26 7,185,061 7,185,061
Mohamad Miya Hajam 2074 02.30 9,120,065 9,120,065
Roshan Kumar Gauttam 2074.04.28 - 4,197,000
Aarati Shrestha 2077.12.25 2,982,650 2,982,650
Srijana Gyawali/Sabita Bhattarai 2077.12.31 3,884,455 3,884,455
Lahanu Dagaura Tharu 2077.12.31 4,618,024 4,618,024
Himthalo Construction 2078.03.27 1,642,950 1,642,950
Prem & Puja Kirana Pasal 2078.06.31 1,743,262 1,743,262
Ncell Kirana Pasal 2078.06.31 1,877,092 1,877,092
Bishambar Khatiwoda 2078.06.31 - 9,524,188
D&P Brothers Suppliers 2078.06.31 4,450,269 4,450,269
Birendra Chaudhary 2078.06.31 645,094 645,094
Shree Jay Hanuman Veli Crusher Udhy 2078.06.31 3,149,672 3,149,672
Jagkiran Construction 2078.06.31 31,155,000 31,155,000
Kaji Sun Chandi Pasal 2078.06.31 - 7,664,190
Nande Sunar 2078.06.24 1,532,000 1,532,000
Saraswati Thapa Bhandari 2078.06.22 10,740,000 10,740,000
Chakra Bahadur Thapa Magar 2078.06.22 1,347,415 1,347,415
Nathu Tharu 2078.12.29 1,371,643 1,371,643
Om Nama Traders 2078.12.29 8,000,000 8,000,000
Ramsamuja Shutting 2079.03.31 2,152,011 2,152,011
Sushmita Dudh Dairy Udhyog 2079.06.31 2,312,659 2,312,659
Nanda Shahi 2079.06.31 5,102,829 5,102,829
Ram Chandra Kohar 2079.09.30 1,675,295 1,675,295
Nirman Bewasai Farm 2079.09.30 2,880,000 2,880,000
Tek Bahadur Sunari 2079.09.30 969,216 969,216
Punam Dangali Hotel 2079.12.28 4,540,073 4,540,073
Prakriti Agro 2079.12.30 20,454,881 20,454,881
Samyog Textile 2079.12.30 3,031,611 3,031,611
Promi Enterprises 2080.03.31 11,289,324 11,289,324
Dharma Raj Agro Center 2080.03.31 4,198,948 4,198,948
Langdhali Khaja ghar 2080.03.31 5,315,507 5,315,507
Aarav Jewelers 2080.03.31 2,780,610 2,780,610
Puja Shreya Trade & Suppliers 2080.03.31 6,077,061 6,077,061
Aaradhya Food Product 2080.03.31 3,175,349 3,175,349
Mina Kumari Damai 2080.03.31 1,430,473 1,430,473
Tamanna Malla Store 2080.03.31 3,667,799 3,667,799
Shyam Sundar Lodh 2080.03.31 3,995,192 3,995,192
Manju Devi Sharma 2080.04.25 3,892,900 3,892,900
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Jay Maa Bagheshowri Baluwa Prasodhan 2080.06.30 - 14,996,328
Tauleshwor Prasad Tharu 2080.11.02 2,222,760 2,222,760
Prinsa Beauty Parlour & Training Center 2080.11.22 1,843,356 1,843,356
Gauspak Galla Kharid Bikri Kendra 2080.11.27 1,905,858 1,905,858
Gita Darai 2080.11.27 1,327,314 1,327,314
Bimala Devi Budha Chhetri 2080.11.27 - 2,045,349
Rukum Jajarkot Hotel 2080.11.27 1,217,939 1,217,939
Padam Bahadur Poudel Chhetri 2080.11.27 1,718,910 1,718,910
Dilip Kumar Singh Lodh 2080.12.13 800,000 800,000
Kamal Ahmad Khan 2081.01.16 1,792,827 1,792,827
Dibya Falful Tarakari Pasal 2081.02.18 4,503,748 4,503,748
The Sauraha Cafe 2081.03.24 - 25,900,053
Ana Bahadur Shrestha 2081.03.24 - 2,702,068
Basanta Bista 2081.03.31 6,662,901 6,662,901
Akhtar Jaha Manihar 2081.03.31 723,534 723,534
Dipak & Dipika Suppliers 2081.03.31 3,989,811 3,989,811
Dibya Bahuuddeshiya Krishi 13,414,190 -
Laxman B.K. 4,219,639 -
Jay Prakash Neupane 1,624,040 -
Muskan Resturant 1,440,121 -
Prateek and Praveer Collection 9,389,667 -
Shrijana Soon Chandi Pasal 2,365,561 -
New Shuvakamala Electricals 4,239,573 -
Ram Din Tharu 2,110,353 -
Om Narayan Tharu 2,053,558 -
Narjunj Shahi 3,408,185 -
Govinda Chaudhary 3,160,000 -
Total 260,520,237 280,124,526

5.11. Earnings per share

The Company measures earning per share based on the earning attributable to the equity shareholders for the period. The
number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required by NAS 33 Earnings

per Share.
. Year ended | Year ended
Units

16-Jul-2025 | 15-Jul-2024
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) NPR '000 (156,566) (100,614)
Welghted average of number of equity shares used in computing basic In 000 8.845 8,548

earnings per share (b)
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs 100 each (a/b) Rs (17.70) (11.77)
Revised basis earning per share Rs (17.70) (11.77)

As there are no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS and diluted EPS
are equal for the period presented. Revised basic earnings per share has been adjusted retrospectively calculated based

on para 64 of NAS 33.
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5.12. Proposed Distributions (Dividends and Bonus Shares)
There are no distributions during the year.

5.13. Unpaid Dividends
As at the reporting date, unpaid dividend over five years amounts to as follows.

Amount in NPR. '000

Particulars As at 16 July 2025 | As at 15 July 2024
Not collected for more than 5 years 595 595
Not collected up to 5 years - -
Total 595 595

5.14. Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities
There are no further disclosures to be made as per NFRS requirements.

5.15. Non-performing assets
The Company’s non-performing assets stood at 14.43% as at balance sheet date. The total non-performing assets as at

Balance sheet date is NPR 614,054,268.
Amount in NPR Full Figure

Loan Category Current year Previous Year

Performing Loan 3,642,742,164 3,789,322,780
Pass Loans 3,226,756,051 3,277,779,803
Watchlist Loans 415,986,113 511,542,976
Non-performing Loans 614,054,268 240,395,836
Restructured/

Rescheduled Loans - -
Substandard Loans 117,009,314 49,069,160
Doubtful Loans 135,072,096 41,140,531
Loss Loans 361,972,858 150,186,145
Gross Loans and Advances 4,256,796,431 4,029,718,616

5.16. Loans Written Off
The Company has written off loans amounting total of Rs 2,592,760 during the year FY 2081-82.

Amount in NPR Full Figure

Borrower Name Amount
Shrijana Soon Chandi Pasal 1,553,141
Govinda Chaudhary 764,950
Baikuntha Narayan 274,669
Total 2,592,760

5.17. Concentration of Deposits, Loans & Advances and Contingents

Amount in NPR Million
Particulars Loa]r;:“iz ﬁi‘;il;cszzand Deposits & Borrowings Non-Funded
CY PY CY PY CY PY
Total Amount Outstanding (Gross) 4,257 4,030 5,754 5,460 - -
Highest Exposure of a Single Unit 73.81 50 152.91 161 - -
Concentration of exposure 1.73% 1.24% 2.66% 2.90% - -

* CY= Current Year, PY = Previous Year

For the calculation of concentration, loans and advances is total loans extended to the customers except staff loans and interest
accruals on loans and the deposits is total deposits from the customers excluding interest payables.
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5.18. Principal Financial Indicators

Particulars Indicator EY. EY. EY. F Y. FY.
2077-78 2078-79 2079-80 | 2080-81 2081-82

1. Percentage of Net Profit/Gross Income % 63% 75% 4% -61% -76%
2. Earnings Per Share NPR 9.88 16.42 1.03 (11.77) (17.70)
3. Market Value per Share NPR 426.00 377.50 353 500.00 512.03
4. Price Earnings Ratio Ratio 43.13 22.99 342.72 (42) (29)
5. Dividend on share capital (Bonus share + Cash dividend) % - - - - -
6. Cash Dividend on share capital % - - - - -
7. Interest Income/Loans & Advances and Investments % 11.88% 11.57% 13.32% 11.70% 11.21%
8. Employee Expenses/Total Operating Expenses % 54.96% 50.39% 53.88% 55.28% 58.69%
9. Interest Expenses on Total Deposits and Borrowings % 6.72% 7.79% 10.88% 9.75% 7.60%
10. Exchange Fluctuation Gain/Total Income % - - - - -
11. Staff Bonus/ Total Staff Expenses % 12.81% 19.42% 1.24% 0.00% 0.00%
12. Net Profit/Loans & Advances % 3.85% 5.12% 0.25% -2.67% -4.02%
13. Net Profit/ Total Assets % 2.05% 2.84% 0.16% -1.62% -2.31%
14. Total Credit/Deposit % 71.39% 88.79% 86.39% 72.25% 73.98%
15. Total Operating Expenses/Total Assets % 3.14% 321% 2.85% 2.77% 2.82%
16. Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weightage Assets

a. Core Capital % 22.38% 20.09% 18.69% 12.55% 9.23%

b. Supplementary Capital % 1.03% 1.28% 1.34% 1.12% 1.11%

c. Total Capital Fund % 23.01% 21.37% 20.03% 13.67% 10.34%
17. Liquidity (CRR) % 3.47% 3.36% 4.28% 4.45% 4.18%
18. Nonperforming Loans/Total Loans % 12.83% 3.07% 3.48% 5.97% 14.43%
19. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread % 4.07% 4.27% 4.57% 4.58% 4.38%
20. Base Rate % 10.95% 13.75% 14.99% 12.57% 10.57%
21. LCY Interest Spread (Calculated as per NRB Directive) % 4.07% 4.27% 4.57% 4.58% 4.38%
22. Book Net worth Rs in Lacs NPR 9,325 11,890 11,802 10,377 9,381
23. Total Shares Number | 8,289,138 | 8,289,138 | 8,548,168 | 8,548,168 | 8,904,242
24. Net Worth Per Share NPR 112.49 143.58 138.07 121.40 105.35
25. Total Employees Number 121 131 135 133 133

5.19.

Valuation Hierarchy

The following tables demonstrates the valuation hierarchy of Company’s Assets and Liabilities. This fair value may differ
from the actual amount that may be received or paid on settlement, realization or maturity of those Financial Assets and
Liabilities.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value

The fair value measurement hierarchy is as follows:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for identical
or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all significant inputs are
observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where there are unobservable inputs of the instruments. The inputs are not based on observable
market data.

Fair Value Disclosure Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Particulars As on 31.03.2082 | As on 31.03.2081 |As on 31.03.2082 | As on 31.03.2081 | Ason 31.03.2082 | As on 31.03.2081
Quoted Equity Shares 124,454,346 192,924,810 - - - -
Unquoted equity 717,557,700 105,461,400
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5.20.
5.20.1

Reserves

General Reserve
The movement in general reserve during the year is as follows:

Amount in NPR Full Figure

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening Balance 241,035,509 239,005,432
Transfer as per BAFIA - 2,030,077
Closing balance 241,035,509 241,035,509

As per Section 44 of Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 (BAFIA), 20% of current year’s net profit have
to be transferred to General Reserve

Fair Value Reserve

5.21.2
Opening balance of Fair value Reserve as on 31st Ashad 2081 (15 July 2024) stands at NPR 35,168,007. During
the year, gain on sale of investment amounting NPR 25,064,715 net of income tax is added to Fair Value Reserve.
Available for sale investments are marked to market on a regular basis and the difference is adjusted through OCI
reserve which amounts to NPR 60,232,722 net of taxes as closing balance.
5.21.3 Corporate Social Responsibility
As per the NRB directive no. 6.16 on Corporate Social Responsibility, the Company have to allocate 1% of the
net profit of current fiscal year for CSR activities.
Amount in NPR Full Figure
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening CSR Fund 1,289,214 1,506,703
Add: 1% profit this year - -
Less: CSR Expenses (285,890) (217,489)
Closing CSR Fund 1,003,324 1,289,214
5.21.4 Employees Training Fund

NRB Directive 6 requires BFI to incur expenses towards employee training and development equivalent to at
least 3% of the preceding year's total staff expenses which amounts to NPR 2,862,494. Total training expenses
of this year amounted to NPR 2,703,803.

Amount in NPR Full Figure

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
Opening Fund 736,493 613,079
Add: 3% of Last year staff expenses 2,862,494 2,566,479
Actual Staff training Expenses (2,703,803) (2,443,065)
Closing Training fund 895,184 736,493

5.21.5 Other Reserve

Other reserve includes actuary reserve, CSR Reserve, Employee Training Fund and Capital Adjustment Reserve

Other Reserve
Capital
Particulars Actuary CSR E.m‘p loyee Adjustment Total
Reserve Reserve | Training Fund
Reserve
Opening balance (2,685,530) | 1,289,214 736,493 | 3,628,619| 2,968,796
Transfer to Reserve during the year 2,685,530 - 2,862,494 - 5,548,024
Transfer from Reserve during the year (285,890) (2,703,803) -1 (2,989,693)
Closing balance -| 1,003,324 895,184 3,628,619| 5,527,127
-97 - o 3if anfifes ufddger 20Ta/TR
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5.22 Regulatory Reserve

During the year regulatory reserve has been credited for Rs 63,508,696 and Rs 66,008,979 has been reversed. Movement
in regulatory reserve during 2081-82 is presented below:

Movement During the year
q Opening Balance | Addition during | Reversal during | Closing Balance
Particulars 81-82 81-82 81-82 81-82
Investment Property 176,478,451 - 46,817,529 129,660,922
Interest Income 31,050,719 - 19,191,450 11,859,269
Actuarial Loss/(gain) on Gratuity - - - -
Bargain purchase Gain 51,427,669 - - 51,427,669
Deferred Tax Assets 28,320,689 62,867,671 - 91,188,360
Interest Capitalized Reserve - 641,298 - 641,298
Total 287,277,529 63,508,969 (66,008,979) 284,777,519
5.20.1 Regulatory Reserve Movement by Year
Short "
; Short Provision |  Short Gainon | Actuarial Fair Value Interest "
Opening | Interest | Loan \ .. | Deferred . . Loss Y Closing
Year . for Possible| Provision Goodwill | Bargain Loss .| Capitalized
Balance | Receivable | Loss Tax Assets . |Recognized Balance
.. | losseson | onNBA Purchase | Recognized | . Reserve
Provision | , in OCI
investment
7516 - 11,250,631 -| 26,031,532 - 73,468,008 877,526 -| 111,627,788
Transfer To/(From) 18,826,539 -| 17,599,082 12,375,729 | 4356691 -877,526 -| 52,280,515
16-71 111,627,788| 30,077,170 -| 43,630,615| 12,375,729 73,468,098 4,356,691 - -1 163,908,303
Transfer To/(From) 24,197,001 -| 52,859,338 -1,842,745 -l 1,008,128 -| 21.847,720
7718 163,908,303 5,880,169 -] 96,489,953 | 10,532,984 73,468,098| 5,384,819 -1 191,756,023
Transfer To/(From) 6,587,282 -| 19,033,122 |-10,532,984 -| 5,107,743 9,979,677
78-19 191,756,023 | 12467451 -| 115,523,075 - 73468,098] 277,076 -] 201,735,700
Transfer To/(From) 17,498,275 18 860,121 -l 7242919 43601316
79-80 201,735,700| 29,965,727 -] 134,383,196 - -| 73468,098] 7,519,995 -| 245337,016
Transfer To/(From) 1,084,992 42095,255| 28,320,689 -1 (22,040429)| (7,519,995) 41940513
80-81 245337,016] 31,050,719 -| 176478451 28,320,689 51,427,669 - -| 287,271,529
Transfer To/(From) -19,191450 -4.6817,529| 62,867,671 - 641,298] -2,500,010
§1-82 287277,529| 11,859,269 -1129,660922 | 91,188,360 51,427,669 641,298] 284,777,519
5.23 Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)
During the year Property Plant and Equipment of NPR 12,698,272 was added other than ROU, ROU of NPR 6,566,163
was added and NPR 1,267,356 was revalued/Adjusted. There was NPR 6,742,250 disposal of PPE which is presented in
schedule 4.13.
5.24 Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Other software of NPR 494,549 was purchased and is presented in schedule 4.14.
5.25 Retained Earnings
Opening Retained earnings was NPR (398,486,244) for the F.Y 2081.82, which was restated by NPR (2,827,307) during
the year of which NPR 13,529,353 relates to reversal of the capital gain tax paid on sell of share arise during merger and
acquisition. NPR 14,001,263 related to reversal of current tax booked during fiscal year 2081.82, which was not required
to pay during final tax computation. NPR (1,000,916) related to adjustment of prior period advance tax, NPR (23,670,847)
related to adjustment of Deferred Tax up to previous year. The remaining NPR (37,374) & 5,857.52 are relates to adjustment
of unclaimed TDS amount up to previous year.
5.26. Right of Use of assets (ROU), Lease liability and expenses
During the year addition in Right of Use of assets amounts to NPR 6,566,163. The depreciation charged on such assets
was NPR. 11,882,493 and is presented in 4.38 of SCI. Likewise lease liability added during the year amounts to NPR
6,566,163. Interest expenses charged in SCI amount to NPR 5,312,981 and are presented in 4.30. Reconciliation of ROU
and lease liability is presented below.
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Right of Use of assets
] Addition 80- . . Depreciation q
Opening 31 Adjustment/revaluation oo Closing
71,844,499 6,566,163 1,267,356 (11,882,493) 67,795,525
Lease liability,
. Addition 80- . . Interest -
Opening 81 Adjustment/ Revaluation lEqans Lease Payment Closing
79,083,843 6,566,163 2,661,240 5,312,981 (14,865,018) 78,759,209

5.27. Non-Operating Expense
During the fiscal Year 2081-82, Loan written off amount of NPR 2,592,760 has been booked as non-operating expense in

schedule 4.40.
5.28. Movement in Interest Receivable by Year
AIR AIR AIR
Non- recognized recovered General transferred
FY Total AIR | recognizable g upto 15 th Net AIR | Staff Bonus Tax CSR
for the Reserve to Regulatory
AIR Shrawan of
year Reserve
next year
2075-76* | 351,046,556 [ 326,366,056 | 24,680,500 6,822,355 17,858,145 (1,785,815) | (4,821,699) - - 11,250,631
2076-77 | 310,643,486 | 235,468,120 75,175,366 | 27,433,827 | 47,741,539 (4,774,154) | (12,890,216) - - 30,077,169
2077-78 | 175,463,151 150,975,628 | 24,487,523 | 15,153,921 9,333,602 (933,360) | (2,520,073) - - 5,880,169
2078-79 45,416,744 | 15,156,591 | 30,260,153 | 10,470,547 19,789,606 | (1,978,961)  (5,343,194) - - 12,467,451
2079-80 86,054,763 [ 23,021,240 | 63,033,523 | 15,468,877 | 47,564,646 | (4,756,465) | (12,842,454) - - 29,965,727
2080-81 96,565,272 18,841,423 | 77,723,849 | 28,436,992 | 49,286,856 | (4,928,686) | (13,307,451) - - 31,050,719
2081-82 91,545,138 51,367,633 40,177,505 16,349,357 23,828,148 | (2,382,815)| (6,433,600) |(3,002,347) | (150,117) 11,859,269

* NFRS was first implemented.
5.29. COVID -19 Related Disclosures

TABLE 1 Amount in NPR Full Figure

As of Ashad end 2082
No. of Customers Amount
Accrued Interest Received after Ashad end 2081 till Shrawan end 2081 - -
Additional 0.3% Loan Loss Provision created on Pass Loan Portfolio - -
Extension of moratorium period of loan provided to Industry or Project
under construction
Restructured/Rescheduled Loan with 5% Loan Loss Provision - -
Enhancement of Working Capital Loan by 20% to COVID affected borrowers - -
Enhancement of Term Loan by 10% to COVID affected borrowers - -
Enhancement of Term Loan by 20% to COVID affected borrowers - -
Expiry Date of Additional 10% Term Loan (COVID Loan) extended for
upto 1 year with 5% provisioning
Time Extension provided for repayment of Principal and Interest for upto
two years as per clause 41 of NRB Directives 2

Particulars

TABLE 2 Amount in NPR Full Figure
Particulars No. of Customers Amount
Refinance Loan - -
Business Continuity Loan - -
TABLE 3 Amount in NPR Full Figure
Particulars During FY 2081/82
No. of Customers Amount
Subsidized Loan 121 96,984,384.33
-99 - oQ 3¥f anfifep Ufddigel 20Ta/T?
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